From: FREE, Brian <Brian.Free@police.govt.nz>
Sent: Sunday, 6 March 2016 09:22 a.m.

To: e

Subject: 598 Castle Street

Hi-

| sent the below message to an incorrect address before leaving a message with the council for you to contact me. |
now have the right address so apologies for the double up.

I believe you have looked at the site of the balcony that failed last evening 4 March 2016 at 598 Castle Street.
The police are wanting to know all details around the construction of the balcony including when it was built, the
construction materials, size of the balcony, how far back the joists go back into the building, that a consent was
issued (details of) and any limitations around loading.

We would be interested in any detail that you may deem relevant.

Please phone me if you wish to discuss this.

Best Regards

Brian

Brian Free

Detective

Criminal Investigation Branch Email Brian.Free@police.govt.nz
New Zealand Police Mobile 021 191 4941

Phone 03 471 4908

Central Police Station
25 Great King Street
Dunedin

Private Bag 1924
Dunedin

Phone 03 471 4800
Fax 03 479 9361

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




From: Adrian Blair

Sent: Monday, 7 March 2016 04:17 p.m.
To: Simon Pickford

Cc: _; Graham McKerracher
Subject: Worksafe NZ Investigation

HI Simon,

| have spoken to Worksafe — Keith Stewart is the Chief Inspector for the response team and he has advised that they
will not be doing an investigation into the balcony collapse in Castle Street on Friday evening. As the premises is a
residential property as opposed to a place of employment they do not consider it appropriate to carry out an
investigation.

They are about to issue a press release accordingly.

Cheers

Adrian

Adrian Blair
Group Manager Customer and Regulatory Services
Dunedin City Council

50 The Octagon, PO Box 5045, Moray Place Dunedin 9058, New Zealand
Telephone: 03 477 4000, Fax 03 474 3488
Email: adrian.blair@dcc.govt.nz; www.dunedin.govt.nz

Register online to receive regular e-newsletter updates from Building Services www.dunedin.govt.nz/bs-newsletter

% Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail



From: Dave Gittings <Dave.Gittings@mbie.govt.nz>

Sent: Monday, 7 March 2016 11:41 a.m.
To: .

Subject: Balcony [UNCLASSIFIED]

Hi

I’'m sure you have been busy with this already!
I need to make a couple of requests in regard the balcony collapse.

I'll be coming down tomorrow to gather up some of the facts and | need a copy of the Plans and Specs. Not
sure what is the best way for this to happen but e-mail or copied onto a CD that | grab tomorrow or | stand
at your copier tomorrow and do it myself — any way works!

Also, I'm not sure what has been done with the remainder of the balcony and who has it but we need to try
and secure the remains. The jurisdiction for this (yours and ours) is only about ‘requesting’ so we are on
shaky ground for that one but really need to ensure we can get as much from it as possible.

If you haven't already could you please try and get hold of the fallen balcony?

Also, would you like to accompany Graeme and | tomorrow? Up to you

Regards Dave

David Gittings

Team Leader, Consent System

Building System Performance,

Building, Resources and Markets,

Ministry of Business, Innovation and Employment
ddi: (04) 9018354 mob: (027) 705-0906

Level 5,15 Stout Street

PO Box 1473

Wellington 6140

www.govt.nz - your guide to finding and using New Zealand government services

Any opinions expressed in this message are not necessarily those of the Ministry of Business, Innovation
and Employment. This message and any files transmitted with it are confidential and solely for the use of
the intended recipient. If you are not the intended recipient or the person responsible for delivery to the
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From: Dave Charters <dave@dclconsulting.co.nz>

Sent: Monday, 7 March 2016 04:56 p.m.
To: I
Subject: Further comments.

I have had a brief look at the Building Consent package. That critical check in the handrail post is contrary to the
drawings which show a full 100 x 100 post set inside the joist/trimmer angle.

| have been reading construction drawings for the thick end of 50 years and | found the isometric of the deck
confusing. | certainly wouldn’t have wanted to try build it off those details, (Drawing entitled “Deck Details” sheet 7
in a series of 10) The cantilever length is referenced from 7.1.5.3 or Table 7.2. Any idea what these refer to? The
cantilever length is certainly drawn a lot less than the 1.23m measured on site.

Regards,

Dave Charters

EXPERIENCE : VALUE : SERVICE : PROFESSIONALISM : INTEGRITY
Contact Details: DDI 03 482 1138 : Cell 021 313135



From:
Sent:
To:

Subject: FW: 598 Castle street

Monday, 7 March 2016 03:28 p.m.

Hi

Below is what | sent- and Dave Charters.
Cheers

M

From:
Sent: Monday, 7 March 2016 2:28 p.m.

To: ; Dave Charters (dave@dclconsulting.co.nz)
Subject: RE: 598 Castle street

Hi and Dave

The footage | found on Stuff.

The first item is the article.
http://www.stuff.co.nz/the-press/77570217/Multiple-injuries-after-balcony-collapses-near-Six60-gig-in-
Dunedin
http://www.stuff.co.nz/national/77581051/concerns-raised-about-balcony-stability-before-dunedin-six60-
gig

Cheers

Ringa awhina tahuhd mo te Mea o Otepoti
Dunedin City Council — Kaunihera a-rohe o Otepoti

50 The Octagon, Dunedin 9016; PO Box 5045, Moray Place, Dunedin 9058, New Zealand - Aotearoa
Telephone - waea: 03 474 3855; Fax — waea whakaahua: 03 474-3488

Email - mera- [ . ncdin. otz

b% Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail

From:
Sent: Monday, 7 March 2016 2:16 p.m.

To: I D: < Charters (dave@dclconsulting.co.nz)

Subject: 598 Castle street

Hi I have been helping out with the investigation over the deck that collapsed at 598 Castle Street.

The engineer that helping us (David Charters) has been made aware that there is footage of the incident and that a
copy was sent to the Mayor.

Is it possible to email a copy of the footage to Dave Charters as this would help him with his investigation.

Kind Regards



Compliance Officer
Regulatory Services
Dunedin City Council

50 The Octagon, Dunedin; PO Box 5045, Moray Place, Dunedin 9058, New Zealand

Telephone: 03 474 3550; Fax 03 474 3523
email; [ vvv.dunedin.govt.nz

%Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail



From: FREE, Brian <Brian.Free@police.govt.nz>

Sent: Monday, 7 March 2016 03:58 p.m.
To:

Cc:

Subject: RE: 598 Castle Street

Hi |}

Police request that any inspection conducted on the balcony by a DCC contracted engineer or other person be
completed under the supervision of police. Therefore it may be better that this occurs once the balcony is with us
as opposed to police staff coming to Ward Street.

Many thanks
Brian

From:

Sent: Monday, 7 March 2016 2:58 p.m.

To: FREE, Brian <Brian.Free@police.govt.nz>
Subject: RE: 598 Castle Street

Hi Brian
Just to keep you in the loop
The owner’s insurance assessor is going to have a look at the deck at 15:30

The DCC has employed Dave Charters, a structural engineer, to look at the deck and give advice about the safety of
the remaining decks. Dave Cell is 021 313 135.

Regulatory Services
Dunedin City Council

50 The Octagon, Dunedin; P O Box 5045, Moray Place, Dunedin 9058, New Zealand
Telephone: 03 477 4000; Fax:

- Register online to receive regular e-newsletter updates from Building Services www.dunedin.govt.nz/bs-
newsletter

% Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail

From: FREE, Brian [mailto:Brian.Free@police.govt.nz]
Sent: Sunday, 6 March 2016 9:22 a.m.




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

| believe you have looked at the site of the balcony that failed last evening 4 March 2016 at 598 Castle Street.
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

WARNING

The information contained in this email message is intended for the addressee only and may
contain privileged information. It may also be subject to the provisions of section 50 of
the Policing Act 2008, which creates an offence to have unlawful possession of Police
property. ITf you are not the intended recipient of this message or have received this



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
Telephone: 03 477 4000; Fax: 03 474 3366
Email:

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



From: Dave Gittings

To: -]
Subject: Balcony [UNCLASSIFIED]

Date: Monday, 7 March 2016 11:41:21 a.m.
Hi

I’m sure you have been busy with this already!
| need to make a couple of requests in regard the balcony collapse.

I'll be coming down tomorrow to gather up some of the facts and | need a copy of the
Plans and Specs. Not sure what is the best way for this to happen but e-mail or copied
onto a CD that | grab tomorrow or | stand at your copier tomorrow and do it myself —
any way works!

Also, I’'m not sure what has been done with the remainder of the balcony and who has it
but we need to try and secure the remains. The jurisdiction for this (yours and ours) is
only about ‘requesting’ so we are on shaky ground for that one but really need to
ensure we can get as much from it as possible.

If you haven’t already could you please try and get hold of the fallen balcony?

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

http://thelink/groups/Documents/Building%20email%20signature.jpg

www.govt.nz - your guide to finding and using New Zealand
government services

Any opinions expressed in this message are not necessarily those of the Ministry of
Business, Innovation and Employment. This message and any files transmitted with it are
confidential and solely for the use of the intended recipient. If you are not the intended
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From: Dave Charters

To: ]
Subject: Castle Street.
Date: Monday, 7 March 2016 06:47:53 p.m.

Current code requirements would set 2.0kN/m? for the balcony loading. This level of loading

roughly equates to 22 people per square metre. Given a deck area of 4.0 x 1.23 approx 5m?,
the safe load for the deck would be about 12 people. | have yet to view contemporary codes of

practice. On the basis of 2.0kN/m? my calculations, which include a lot of assumptions
regarding timber grade, suggest that the deck would be fully loaded at this loading level. That
is, it would be highly loaded but safe. | have not checked deflections. Anecdotal evidence
suggests that there were 20 — 30 people on the deck at the time of the collapse. | have viewed
photographs on stuff where the deck can be identified and it is certainly crowded.

Where areas are susceptible to overcrowding the imposed floor loading would increase to

5.0kN/m2. (AS/NZS 1170 Table 3.1, C5). This level of loading would grossly overstress the deck
and be likely to cause its collapse.

| considered the imposed loading from 25 people at 80kg each. At this loading the deck would
have a capacity of about 50% of the imposed load. Collapse would be likely as all safety factors
would be used up. The effect of synchronous movement — in time with the music — cannot be
overlooked as a factor exacerbating the situation.

These considerations underpin my earlier advice to prohibit entry onto the affected areas until
improvements are completed. | would expand my earlier advice regarding the balustrade. My
calculation was based on the standard 0.75kN/m. In areas subject to overcrowding this would
increase to 3.0kN/m.

The next step is to consider contemporary design standards. | can source these but it will, |
think, be more efficient to source these from your archive. At this time the following
contemporary documents would be valuable:

NZS 4203:1998.
Relevant Acceptable Solutions.
NZS 3603.

| am on site at Aviemore Dam supervising Spillway Gate Bearing lift-out tomorrow morning but
should be back in the office mid afternoon.

Naturally, | will tie these emails into a coordinated document reporting my findings formally as
the work pprogresses.

Dave Charters

email logo


mailto:dave@dclconsulting.co.nz

From: Dave Charters

To: ]
Subject: Further comments.
Date: Monday, 7 March 2016 04:56:53 p.m.

| have had a brief look at the Building Consent package. That critical check in the handrail post is
contrary to the drawings which show a full 100 x 100 post set inside the joist/trimmer angle.

| have been reading construction drawings for the thick end of 50 years and | found the
isometric of the deck confusing. | certainly wouldn’t have wanted to try build it off those
details, (Drawing entitled “Deck Details” sheet 7 in a series of 10) The cantilever length is
referenced from 7.1.5.3 or Table 7.2. Any idea what these refer to? The cantilever length is
certainly drawn a lot less than the 1.23m measured on site.

Regards,

Dave Charters
email logo
2]

EXPERIENCE : VALUE : SERVICE : PROFESSIONALISM : INTEGRITY
Contact Details: DDI 03 482 1138 : Cell 021 313135


mailto:dave@dclconsulting.co.nz

From:

To: EREE, Brian

Subject: RE: 598 Castle Street

Date: Monday, 7 March 2016 04:13:00 p.m.
Attachments: imaage001.png

Brian

Our engineer did the inspection while it was sitting at the original site. We simply moved it to
secure it for any future inspections. How about we drop it off to you at 11:00 tomorrow?

Regulatory Services
Dunedin City Council
50 The Octagon, Dunedin; P O Box 5045, Moray Place, Dunedin 9058, New Zealand

Telephone: 03 477 4000; Fax: 03 474 3366

- Register online to receive regular e-newsletter updates from Building Services

www.dunedin.govt.nz/bs-newsletter
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From: FREE, Brian [mailto:Brian.Free@police.govt.nz]
Sent: Monday, 7 March 2016 3:58 p.m.

To:

Cc: INGLIS, Malcolm

Subject: RE: 598 Castle Street

Hi-

Police request that any inspection conducted on the balcony by a DCC contracted engineer or
other person be completed under the supervision of police. Therefore it may be better that
this occurs once the balcony is with us as opposed to police staff coming to Ward Street.

Many thanks
Brian

rror S

Sent: Monday, 7 March 2016 2:58 p.m.

To: FREE, Brian <Brian.Free@police.govt.nz>
Subject: RE: 598 Castle Street

Hi Brian

Just to keep you in the loop


mailto:Brian.Free@police.govt.nz
http://www.dunedin.govt.nz/bs-newsletter
http://www.dunedin.govt.nz/
http://www.facebook.com/DunedinCityCouncil
http://twitter.com/DnCityCouncil
http://www.linkedin.com/company/dunedin-city-council
mailto:Brian.Free@police.govt.nz
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The owner’s insurance assessor is going to have a look at the deck at 15:30

The DCC has employed Dave Charters, a structural engineer, to look at the deck and give advice
about the safety of the remaining decks. Dave Cell is ||| -

Regulatory Services
Dunedin City Council

50 The Octagon, Dunedin; P O Box 5045, Moray Place, Dunedin 9058, New Zealand
Telephone: 03 477 4000; Fax: 03 474 3366

Email:
-newsletter updates from Building Services

www.dunedin.govt.nz/bs-newsletter
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From: FREE, Brian [mailto:Brian.Free@police.govt.nz]
Sent: Sunday, 6 March 2016 9:22 a.m.

To
Subject: 598 Castle Street

Hi-

| sent the below message to an incorrect address before leaving a message with the council for
you to contact me. | now have the right address so apologies for the double up.

| believe you have looked at the site of the balcony that failed last evening 4 March 2016 at 598
Castle Street.

The police are wanting to know all details around the construction of the balcony including
when it was built, the construction materials, size of the balcony, how far back the joists go
back into the building, that a consent was issued (details of) and any limitations around
loading.

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
Date: Monday, 7 March 2016 04:36:01 p.m.

7

Any delay is due to caution in a situation where every move is potentially politically charged. |
started by looking at the balustrade. In particular | looked at the top rail and central post. Both
have a capacity of much less than current code. A check against contemporary codes may help.
| think it unlikely that contemporary codes will prove the balustrade adequate.

The critical feature that reduces the capacity of the post is the 50% check around the balcony
edge trimmer.

On this basis my recommendation is that the balconies are closed until improvements have
been carried out.

| am now moving on to checking the deck itself against gravity loads.

Dave Charters

email logo

EXPERIENCE : VALUE : SERVICE : PROFESSIONALISM : INTEGRITY
Contact Details: DDI 03 482 1138 : Cell 021 313135

rror: I

Sent: Monday, 7 March 2016 4:09 PM

Subject: 598 Castle Street
Hi Dave are we getting close to a decision or do you need more time?

Kind Regards

Compliance Officer
Regulatory Services
Dunedin City Council

50 The Octagon, Dunedin; PO Box 5045, Moray Place, Dunedin 9058, New Zealand
Telephone: 03 474 3550; Fax 03 474 3523
email; | . clunedin. Govt.nz

%Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail


mailto:dave@dclconsulting.co.nz
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From:

To: EREE, Brian

Subject: RE: 598 Castle Street

Date: Monday, 7 March 2016 03:24:00 p.m.
Attachments: imaage001.png

Hi Brian

Not trying to be difficult but if you need it in a hurry it would be easier if we meet you at the
storage facility and put it on your transport.

The earliest we could move it is going to be tomorrow

Regulatory Services

Dunedin City Council

50 The Octagon, Dunedin; P O Box 5045, Moray Place, Dunedin 9058, New Zealand
Telephone: 03 477 4000; Fax: 03 474 3366

email: [

- Register online to receive regular e-newsletter updates from Building Services

www.dunedin.govt.nz/bs-newsletter
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From: FREE, Brian [mailto:Brian.Free@police.govt.nz]
Sent: Monday, 7 March 2016 3:21 p.m.

To:

Cc: LEISHMAN, Stanley; INGLIS, Malcolm

Subject: RE: 598 Castle Street

Hi-

| have been asked as per authority from the balcony owners that arrangements are made for
the balcony to be secured with police.

To that end we would like to secure the balcony at the central station. If you are able to please
arrange for the balcony to be shifted to our storage ASAP that would be greatly appreciated.
Please call me when you have a time that suits you to meet us at the rear of the central station
with the balcony.

Many thanks
Brian


mailto:Brian.Free@police.govt.nz
http://www.dunedin.govt.nz/bs-newsletter
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rror:

Sent: Monday, 7 March 2016 1:16 p.m.

To: FREE, Brian <Brian.Free@police.govt.nz>

Cc: Graham McKerracher <Graham.McKerracher@dcc.govt.nz>; Simon Pickford
<Simon.Pickford@dcc.govt.nz>; Adrian Blair <Adrian.Blair@dcc.govt.nz>; Kristy Rusher
<Kristy.Rusher@dcc.govt.nz>

Subject: RE: 598 Castle Street

Hi again Brian

Following our conversation on Sunday morning the DCC decided it needed to secure the deck
so have moved it to a garage on Ward Street.

Please let me know if you need access

Regulatory Services
Dunedin City Council
50 The Octagon, Dunedin; P O Box 5045, Moray Place, Dunedin 9058, New Zealan

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
Sent: Monday, 7 March 2016 9:00 a.m.

To:
Subject: RE: 598 Castle Street

Thanks-
rrom:

Sent: Monday, 7 March 2016 8:56 a.m.

To: FREE, Brian <Brian.Free@police.govt.nz>
Subject: RE: 598 Castle Street

Hi Brian

| have ordered the original application documents from our storage facility. | should have
something for you in a day or so
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

il

| sent the below message to an incorrect address before leaving a message with the council for
you to contact me. | now have the right address so apologies for the double up.

I believe you have looked at the site of the balcony that failed last evening 4 March 2016 at 598
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
Cc: Graham McKerracher; Adrian Blair; Simon Pickford; ||| | | | I
Subject: RE: 598 Castle Street
Date: Monday, 7 March 2016 03:20:00 p.m.
Attachments: ABA-1999-3045.pdf
image001.png
Hi Brian

Attached is a copy of the Building Consent for the collapsed deck. | think this should answer all
of your questions.

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

- B H B
e = fere

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
mailto:Graham.McKerracher@dcc.govt.nz
mailto:Adrian.Blair@dcc.govt.nz
mailto:Simon.Pickford@dcc.govt.nz
http://www.dunedin.govt.nz/bs-newsletter
http://www.dunedin.govt.nz/
http://www.facebook.com/DunedinCityCouncil
http://twitter.com/DnCityCouncil
http://www.linkedin.com/company/dunedin-city-council
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{ORM 3 - PART A

APPLICATION FOR BUILDING CONSENT

Section 33, Building Act 1991

?f@[/;@fw‘a ?“Vk
Lo | _IF Sy

4

FILE | |

A9 304s

COUNCIL

TO :PMM}W\ @ "{f:‘_x :

Complete Part A in all cases
(Insert a cross in each applicable box. Attach relevant documents in duplicate)

APPLICANT* oQqugg

Name: . -K&naﬂhta T HUU f\ %} 3%/ |

Mailing Address: . 2\ y (QL e Ilace. ..
e A ,1\Y\ .....................
Contact Name: . \’:_J € \\/ Q h NS0L), fl"g“wf
Position: . . A=, ".".'.l P77d

Phone:. "’r‘_‘hj (3“’1 ‘/.2 Fax: 0352\1 S—Sté‘g
0D 3225500

PROJECT LOCATION

PROJECT

New or Relocated Building

Alteration

Intended Life:

Indefinite, but not less than 50 years

Specified as

Demolition

Being stage stages

Attach additional information if necessary to describe
the project

Valuation Roll NUmber . .« ieeis o o 0wt s 5 s andein s o o
L] B e R BRI & o o darataa et e e
Section: \O‘LS@C . Block: .. X?(XI/I i

Survey District: . T’!\/ . ﬁ§ g DWV»QJ*M =L

COUNCIL CHARGES

The Council's charges payable on the making of this
application are based on the value of (GST inclusive):

)

Building Gl P oy i ]
Plumbing & Drainage b R 2 e e o O
Total: 5566i\9“003‘i

Ree 180 31C

OFFICIAL RECEIPT

53594 08Nav99 13335 CHED

08983

P

L4
Under Section 33 of the building Act 1991 the applicant must be the owner of the land on which building work is

contemplated or a person who or which has agreed in writing, whether conditionally or unconditionally, to purchase the
land or any leasehold estate or interest in the land, or to take a lease of the land, while the agreement remains in force,






&]ys application is for:
Building consent only, in accordance with project information memorandum no:. Q‘@P'A‘ (/]0’2\67 0

D Both building consent and a project information memorandum,.

PART B: PROJECT DETAILS

(Complete part B only if you have not applied separately for a project information memaorandurm)

The project invoices the following matters (cross each applicable box, if any, and attach relevant information in
duplicate).

Location, in relation to legal boundaries, and external dimensions of new, relocated, or altered buildings.
New provisions to be made for vehicular access, including parking.

Provisions to be made in building over or adjacent to any reoad or public place.

New provisions to be made for disposing of stormwater and wastewater.

Precautions to be taken where building work is to take place over existing drains or sewers or in close
proximity to wells or watermains.

New connections to public utilities.

Provisions to be make in any demolition work for the protection of the public, suppression of dust, disposal of
debris, disconnection from public utilities, and suppression of noise.

1 o o

Any cultural heritage significance of the building or building site, including whether it is on a marae.

PART C: BUILDING DETAILS

(Complete part C in all cases)

The application is accompanied by (cross each applicable box, attach relevant documents in duplicate):

The drawings, specifications, and other documents according to which the building is proposed to be constructed
to comply with the provisions of the building code, with supporting documents, if any, including:

l:l Building certificates.
I:I Producer statements.
D References to accreditation certificates issued by the Building Industry Authority.

D References to determinations issued by the Building Industry Authority.

D Proposed procedures, if any, for inspection during construction
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FORM 3 - PART D: KEY PERSONNEL

(Complete Part D as far as possible in all cases. Give names, addresses, and telephone numbers. Give
Q relg Fr{ Lgrstraﬁon numbers if possible)

$B L
Tl g
Bunder(g.\. i é’-{d/ f ..... eS| . /‘-\ } d( .........................

Registaren DrainaYer e s 2 s i s e Rt 5 s disiaiats 5 5 8 yiahlaty o h x s alinzabds x o v % Cﬂ/‘\

AL T e L TR et Gl o 6 50 ST O KR T S 5 i 17 0 Gl ks S e O B3 S TR
217 LA O

D SR e S NG R e it o S el o S e s o i NSl K R 1

Registeraa i iect R - o o rre = oo s S Wals) 5l s e r = o el ets e 5, B e R e
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PART E: COMPLIANCE SCHEDULE DETAILS

E1: SYSTEMS NECESSITATING A COMPLIANCE SCHEDULE
(Complete part E1 for all new buildings and alterations, except single residential dwellings)

The building will contain the following (cross each applicable box and attach proposed inspection, maintenance, and
reporting procedures.)
Automatic sprinkler systems or other systems of automatic fire protection.

Automatic doors which form part of any fire wall and which are designed to close shut and remain shut on an
alarm of fire.

Emergency warning systems for fire or other dangers.

Emergency lighting systems.

Escape route pressurisation systems.

Riser mains for fire service use.

Any automatic back-flow preventer connected to a portable water supply.
Lifts, escalators, or travelators or other similar systems.

Mechanical ventilation or air conditioning system serving all or a major part of the building.

Any other mechanical, electrical, hydraulic, or electronic system whose proper operation is necessary for
compliance with the building code.

Building maintenance units for providing access to the exterior and interior walls buildings.

Such signs as are required by the building code in respect of the above-mentioned systems.

NOO 00000000 O

None of the above

E2: OTHER SYSTEMS AND FEATURES TO BE INCLUDED IN THE COMPLIANCE SCHEDULE
(Complete Part E2 only if the building contains one or more of the systems listed in Part E1)

The building will contain the following (cross each applicable box and attach proposed inspection, maintenance, and
reporting procedures.)

I:] Means of escape from fire.

Safety barriers.

D Means of access and facilities for use by persons with disabilities which meet the requirements of Section 25 of
the Disabled Person Community Welfare Act 1975

D Hand-held hoses for fire fighting.

l:‘ Such signs as are required by the Building Code or Section 25 of the Disabled Persons Community Welfare Act
1975.
)

behalf of the applicant:

PRIVACY ACT 1993 v

This information is required by The Building Act 1991 and is used to administer Councils obligations under that Act. It may
be disclosed for the purposes specified in that Act, The Local Government Official Information and Meetings Act 1987 and
the Privacy Act 1993. You may access and request correction of personal information held about you.






Please answer the following questions if they apply. Outer Walls
What material will be used for the: (tick boxes) 1 I:l Brick
Floor Framing Energy 2D Concrete
1 IZ/ Timber 1 D Timber 1 Electric SD Concrete block
2 ZI Concrete 2 D Concrete 2 D Gas 4!:‘ Cement board
3 D Wood products 3 l___l Steel 3 D Solid fuel 5@ Plaster
4 D Other 4 D Aluminium 4 D Floor electrical GD Timber
e B
5 il Floor Area M? 5 Other 5 D Ceiling electrical 7D Steel
Roof Insulation 6 l:l Storage electrical BD Aluminium
1 [Z Steel 1 m Fibreglass Cooking gl:.] Other
2 I:I Concrete tiles 2 D Masserated paper 7 Electric Internal Linings
3 \:I Steel tiles 3 D Wool 8 D Gas 1 D Plaster board
4 D Shingles 4 D Foil 9 I:I Solid fuel 2 D Fibrous plaster
5 D Aluminium 5 Other 3 IZT Wood products
6 l:] Other 4 l:‘ Other
FOR OFFICE USE ONLY
EEC [ O T SRR S
BRANZ TYPE CODE IDENTIFIER CODE OFFICER
Checked By: Date: Report
Building /-f2—12
Means of Egress ao o IR ] TR ER IR L s v e SRR
Plumbing & Drainage UK Lecllon. | 72-1 1.
Design .......................................
Roading e ~
Watar . . T ORI R v s s
Dangerous Goods
R ST 7 R e SR
Planning | {4 il | RessieliSSiant .
+ -

Approved for issue of Building Consent

Building Control Oﬁicer:?"%






“ BUILDING CONSENT

s = opy

Section 35, Building Act 1991 ISSUED BY: DUNEDIN CITY COUNCIL

-

-4

Telep_ﬁ_éne No: | 477-4000 Coﬁsent No:| ABA 993045 ReferenceNo 5105420
|
(Insert a cross in each appticable box. Attach relevant documents).
APPLICANT PROJECT
Name: KINETIC HOLDINGS LIMITED
20 GARDEN PL All E
DUNEDIN 2001
Stage NO ..o of an intended
.................................... stages
New Building E
PROJECT LOCATION
Alteration D

Street Address:
Intended Use(s) in detail:

820 CUMBERLAND STREET, DUNEDIN 9001
ERECT STUDENT ACCOMMODATION/8 UNITS ad ONL

LEGAL DESCRIPTION
intended Life:
Property Number: 5105420 Indefinite, not less than 50 years E’
Valuation Roll No: Specified as years
.gal Description: Demolition D

PT SEC 42 BLK XXXill TN OF DUNEDIN (SO 1
Estimated Value: $500000

Signed for and on behalf of the Council:

COUNCIL CHARGES

The balance of Council's charges payable on uplifting
of this building consent, in accordance with the
tax invoice are:

Position: AUTHORISED OFFICER

Total: $
Date: 08/12/1999

ALL FEES ARE GST INCLUSIVE

This building consent is a consent under the Building Act 1991 to undertake building work in accordance with the
attached plans and specifications so as to complg with the provisions of the building code. It does not affect any duty or
responsibility under any other Act nor permit any breach of any other Act.

This building consent is issued subject to the conditions specified in the attached ...... pages headed "Conditions of
Building Consent No........ !

50 The Octagon, P.O. Box 5045, Dunedin 9031, New Zealand
Teleshone {03) 477 4000 - Facsimile (03) 474 3594 - www.CityofDunedin.com






STELLA PRCIFIC » BBed 3 4771222

Kinetic Holdings

Residential Development

Cumberland Street

DRAFT

BUNEDIN CITY COUNCIL
Plans and Specifications Approved in accordance
with The New Zealand Building Code and Approved
Documents. Tobe retained on works
and produced on request
Building Gl Date /- /2 = 2%
Drainage ,@\WDate";' - 2. 9F
Health Date
NOTE

ope

MO, 3





Preliminary Scope of Works

Excavation

1. All excavation and fill to reduced levels is by separate Contractor.

Concrete work

1. Generally are standard Concrete slab and footing construction complete with
reinforeing bars to footing and mesh to slab.

Timber Floor and Decks
1. Generally are standard Timber Floor and Deck construction.
Metalwork

1. Allow for 1 x Galvanised Mild stee! roof mounted TV aerial bracket per block
of units.

Carpentry

1. All timber framing to be Dry frame or similar
2. Exterior wall himngs
o [Equus proprietary polystyrene and plaster, paint finished.
o All flashings to be 535g Colorsteel
Handrail to the decks, to be as shown on the drawings.
Intenor walls
+ All intenor walls to be of Standard Triboard construction
AN walls and ceilings are to be Paint Finish Level 4
Square stop all Non 90 degree ceiling junctions.
All internal and exiemnal comers on walls are to be square stopped.
All walls in bathrooms and ensuites and other wet areas shall be protected
from moisture. '
9. All inter unit walls sha!) be designed to achieve 2 minimum of
s 30/30/30 FRR.
s 60 STC sound rating

B

go 1 o
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WC Pans, Close Coupled

Make and style: Dux Delmonte S Pan and Cistern Set
Vanity Tops

Make and style: 750mm Builders Special
Trap: std PVC

Shower Enclosures
Make and type: Bathroom works Sapphire
Material and colour: White

Dimensions: 900 x 900mm centre outlet
Trap: Easiclean

BEA180M 270 litre Rheem fast recovery Electric HWC, complete with all trays, valves
fixings and fittings and seismjc restraint and flue.

Laundry

Rotec Supertub

Drainage

All site drainage and works ouiside the buitding line will be undertaken by separate

Contractors, work within the building is part of the contract and to include connection
to site drains.

Electrical
1. {ncoming Mains and reticulation system into the complex is to be provided by
~ aseparate Contractor.

2. Thig Contract inciudes taking the separately supplied mains power and
terminating in a main switchboard within each Unit.

3 Power and lighting services as follows. and connection of appliances.
L Ail wining and fuse board as per attached plan
2. All power outlets are double
3. Wiring to Instatlation and connection of
Refrigerator/freezer
Microwave






201693,

E2:49

4.

Finishes

STELLR PACIFIC = @@6d4 3 4771222

Oven and Hobb
Range Hood and booster fan

Supply, Wire, Instal) and connect
To each Bathroom

1 x Creda fan heater wall mounted and operated by sepa_rate
switch by light switch

1 x PDL Batten Holder
To each Bed Room

2 PDL Double Plugs
2 PDL Holders (Lights)

Allow for connecting outlets for the TV system into the following
areas,

1 x to lounge

Altow for incoming telephone system cables and connecting outlets for
the phone system into the following areas:;
1 x Kitchen/breakfast bar

All power, TV and phone outlets in Inter unit walls are to be in
proprietary PDL sound/fire rated boxes.

1 All interior walls and ceilings are to be paint finished
Complete Interior and exterior painting 10 ali surfaces:
Painters are to provide a full specification for this project from rcputahle Paint
manufacturer aflow for:

I X interior colours per unit

Exterior colours with main entry door colours to be individual per unit.

Toilets and ensuites (Ceilings and Walls)

- Semi Gloss enamel system
Interior Doors — Architrave's and trim

- High Gloss enamel system
Walis - Lowsheen system
Ceilings - Lowsheen gystem

NO.315






20,1899 @3:49 STELLR PRCIFIC =+ G@Bed 3 4771222 NO, 315 yes

10, To al} ceilings within 1000mm of an adjacent unit shall be designed to achieve
a minimum of
e 30/30/30 FRR
1. Skirting 190 x 18 MUF Colomal
12.  Scotia shall be MUF

13.  Flooring to be sanded and left ready for floonng. Allowance to be made for
reticulation of Water, power and waste pipes. Ceilings shall be 1 x layer
12 5mm gib-bd stopped and fimshed.

Hardware
1. All doors are to be fitted with Lockwood 570 series latchsets with Lockwood

Symphony or similar senes handles, Note Hinges are to be fimshed the same
as the door hardware (Front door to be latching Lockset).

2. To all toilets Prermer Toilet rol) holder

3. To all vanities and Wash hand basins Soap dish and toothbrush holder,

4. 900 x 600 Mirror with polished edges over vanity units by others.

5. Door stops to all doors shall be

Joinery and Joinery Fittings

1. Melamine on Particle Board with 3mm edge trim to all doors, drawer fronts
and end panels.

2, All wardrobe doors to be paint quality Hollow core on Proprietary Henderson
Stiding Track.

3. Laundry Doors shall be PQ Hollow core.
4 Internal Doors are to Standard Triboard
5 Architrave to all windows and doors to be high quality paint finished.

Appliances

» Atlas Neptune Stove or similar.

Exterior Windows and doors |

1. Proprictary grade powdercoated aluminium windows and doors as per the
drawings, all reveals are to be finger jointed pine, paint finished.

Roofing

1. Al roofing shall be .40g corrupated colorsteel fixed strictly in accordance with
manufacturers instructions on galvanised wire netting, Fire retardant reflective






’ 2a-,18-92 @9:49 STELLA PACIFIC » BEed 3 4771222 ) - NO.315

fotl underlay and birdproofing, allow for R2 2 ceiling Batts all fixed to timber

framing and trusses as per the drawings.

2. Allow for all 40 ¢olorsteel flashings, ndging, fixings and the like to match the

roofing.

Ll

All gutters shall be colorsteel fascia system complete with PVC downgpipes.

4. Form roofing around and flashings to all penetrations.

Proprietary exterior systems

1. Where plaster finish has been detailed on the drawings to walls the finish shalt
be Equus Proprietary Polystyrene and plaster exterior coating system, allow
for proprietary flashings at all window heads and sills and horizontal change

of direction or materials.

Plumbing
Tap and Faucets
Fitting L.ocation Tapset Type
Wash hand basins Faucets 15mm
Showers Rose

Mixer
Sinks Faucets
WC cisterns Stop taps 15mm
Urinal cisterns Stop taps 15mm

Brand

Methven Promix basin

Methven Futura F115 Chrome

Methven Promix

Methven Promix Sink

Methven

Methven

LJiad
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Floor Coverings

| Front Entry

| All Toilets, Bathrooms, Kitchens s
Supply and lay vinyl to alt these areas, vinyl o be coved up walls
100mm and capped with painted 15 x 15 timber bead. All Jaid in-
accordance with manufacturers specifications.

Al other Areas

Allow the supply and laying of Cavalair Bremworth Concerto Carpets 100%
wool carpet atd underlay to the balance areas, Including stairs,
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Ph/Fax 08 621 0364
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Board density 700kg/m3

"Date 24/2/94

STC Rating (dB) 26 29 ,_ 45 ., 50 54
LA Tt et et ?‘ VI R I i ad 1 .
R e 52 100 sz 32 00 56 - 35 100 32 35 100 65 "82 100 65 32 100 50
{ ‘
Triboard Wall ! u\l\l B 3 el e e | E\ll \ S\'\I
For construction detalls see Sheat 36 \ll _ \Ilh 'f ,’l’ \l, Jl’, : \'l \,| \'] 'l : ,| . \ , .o I’ \|I'
- \\:‘ & g e - gt WS Sh WS S . i\\\ ok f“\'
Note: | I | B 2fly Iz &I, e 2l s el i |l, e aly,
Ratings shown In bold are I i, H SI,’\ I gl,ll_ ! 5|,l | | gl,l e Sl |\ b g‘:l\
test vaiues. Dther values ' .
indicative only B .35 mm 38 mm Two skins Two skins Two ‘skins Two skins Two skins Two skins
If rating Is oritical Triboard  Triboard  Triboard Triboard Triboard Triboard separated Tiboard
contact Marshalt Day Assoclates connected connacted separated separaled at edges separated
for further Information at edpes al edges al edges at edges with cenire at edges
connactlon
Marshaell Day Report . 140791RA
STC Rating (dB) 36 44 50 58 60
: 9.5 100 9.5 19 100 19 25 110 25 1B 226 18
: = ]
Alternative wall ==
— %
l'""'-"‘ :
i | B
NI
9.5 mm glb - * 2/9.5 mm glb Single frame 200 mm block  Two separale
on 100 x 50 on 100 x 50 with restlient wall flflled frames,
_ studs @ 400 crs studs @ 600 crs channel
Marshall Day pers comm: ' -
Winatona Lid catalogue: GBT30 GBTe0-A GBTA-30 GBTLABQ
orawn 1 ACTRANZ by @ F Qals & Aesocinte Triboard wall sound ratings :;“?‘: :"3 ;‘9;"9;‘; ’:‘3 o :Ilo;No 93031
ocke ate ‘. Sheet. 39
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STUD EQUNALENT TABLES

P

PANELS FOR EXTERNAL LOAD BEARING WALLS

- e e,

Refamng to NZS 3604 Table 6.3 for studs |n extemal loadbeanng walls

“Table 63D

Requnred by Table 6.3

~ 75 x50 @ 600

75 x 50 @ 480

75 % 50 @ 400

100 x 40 @ 600

100 x 40 @ 480
100 x 50 @ 600

100 x 40 @ 400
100 x 50 @ 480

100 x 50 @ 400
100 x 75 @ 600
100 x 75 @ 480

100 x 100 @ 600
100x 75 @ 400
100 x 100 @ 480

100 x 100 @ 400

150 x 50 @ 600

150 x 50 @ 480
150 x 50 @ 400

150x 75 @ 600 ~
150 X 75 @ 480 "

150 x 75 @ 400

_Tnboard equuv\alent
' \

45 mm Triboard
36 mm LD Triboard
47 x 22 plywood battens @ 400

24 mm Triboard
47 x 40 battens on flat @ 600

32 mm Triboard
47 x 40 battens on flat @ 600

32 mm Triboard
47 x ;47 battens @ 600

35 mm Triboard
47 x 47 battens @ 600

35 mm Triboard
47 x 47 battens @ 400
or 47 x 69 on flat @ €00

35 mm Triboard
€9 x 47 battens @ 600
35 mm Triboard
69 x 47 battens @ 400

a5 mm Triboard
96 x 47 battens @ 600

- 35 mm Triboard

96 x 47 battens @ 480
35 mm Tnboérd _
- 96 X 47 baﬂens @ 400

45 mm Tnboard
96 x 47 battens @ 400

Panels for internal Ioadbeanng walls supportlng floors

Required by Table 6.2

100x 50 @ 800

Triboard equivalent

35 or. 38 mm without battens
Engineering check reguired
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Steel C Section floor joist spans 1.5 kPa LL o 1
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11_!_ 1/1/ - %Q r’F = I/l/ 9
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I s ] | | "Min 5 x8 | s i i

Single Span - - | Two spans xa ¢

| : :

Spacing S ' e R Spacing ' e ' *

600 i o T e |

TR T N S M B _ . AR | '

4.6 6 7 8-9 10 1 .'F"?_°' and ceiling . 56 7 8 8 10 1 12 i
Spacing

[ |

Sheets 37 & 38 .

600 - |
- o," "f\"‘\"& \%ﬁk For detalls see

{ I—

|i||i|'4
4567891011

Floor only

For details see sheets 38 & 39

prawn tor ACTRANZ by R F Gals & Assoclales Stae| C Sectlon floor jOiStS Drawn RG Revised RG Flle Nor 930?1
14 Apinal 8t Oraked AUCKLAND 5 ‘ S ) Checked Date 26/8 Sheet 36
© " phfFax 09 521 0364 Ex cold rolled purlins Date 24/2/94
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Ap.n;f’ﬂ u [ ]
Walls broken by large openings

: Fixi Panel width
Fixing _ P?l‘lel. Wld'lh m L ng _ _ . _ . . _ g ranch sliders, wilh ceparate
06 10 20 30 40 80 60 10 80 o6 ;:1.0 ';m ::a.o -24.0 ;:s.o Eo'o 27.0 ;a'o. . lintels are conslderad separate walls
B8 danous SOI'O\'I'.d ﬂxlngn, N nallcd : : e ‘4 P s 22 D20 138 Y 51 ‘58 5"1 o
148 §0 ' ;aa 167 250 883 417 600_,;603 : €67 : : : : : : : : : Lo T
‘35 ': 58 ':11:1 175 233 292 'Easo ‘408 | 4675 - ' S
: : oo ~ Llfling and of panel held dnwn by walght ol‘ trunon and celllng crasnlng
Lifting end of pana! | hald dn\un by 2 m lengln ot o:tornal wn[l e e W . - : S
/p o iso §1oo 160 zoo zso 300 : 360 400 /Q 1 o2 | 26 L 170 (101 187 70
leng and of panel heid down by 8kN connecllon Llfﬂng and of pnnei hald dwn by walnhl ol 1ruuet lnd ncl!lhg pan[lol Walle with small openings, eg wlndowJ
: up to.2m wide x 1200 deep
: Z ﬁ : : : : : : : : : : o Do : and Internal doors with continuous
1. ‘:36 ':10 :105 '.140 175 ?10 245 ;280 : 8 : LI 2 . 9 520 ‘:36 ;67 : 82 L Lol intals 400 desp may be conaldered
A Lo A S A 10 ba ona length
1 m wide pnnalu held dnwn by scrnwad bqltans nl eoq ere - Wall panel roulstfpg ovquumlng by lI.s own;_walgh? _
418 M 12 549 f:ins 5194 304 433 L 778 : : : : : : 5 : :
E : : : : : : : 205 T p 9 18 27 (36 (46 (5§ 64 73
Te 38 (82 M8 ;_223 ;azs D 447 : 683! : : : : : : : : : :
External walt pnnol nted to 1‘Io|n wllh hansn- ut 600 bu Litting. end of panel hsl:d dowri by ﬁelght or 2m ol wall In fioor above : ' /
- . — L —= — —_ —_— —— e — . — : :
43 3 7 ze iee 5_111 wz 263 ‘357 467 : AT T /
m s 15 56 ot ‘290 368 ses ERRNCE 206 02 16 W 42 75 w7 ciee 230 300 -
; “Typs 4.3 bas Iwe nlil Into Batten, 4.4 hue four In!o bnrd ' .‘ : . : : : : : : - :
Extornal wall pans} fixed 1o oonorm lloor wun framing annhou at eoo ore Lifling end of pane! held down by welght of 2m of flor In floor above E._‘ o
i, i o —_ _ : _ - : = — L : :. \“\g\.
5 0 iy loz (83 44 66 66 77 88 007 1§ 26 60 75 100 126 (150 (7B 200 Al walls fixed to floor te prevent
: : ; : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : gliding. Use any detail on Shest 1
Lifting end ol panél held down by welght of 2m length of Internal wall Litting end ol panal hald down by welghl of 2m of floot In floos above Panols 2450 high
- - - - - - bearing on wall flxed at rght anglas :
Bracing values for the same panal using varlous fixings may be added
; vise G
grawn fot ACTRANZ by R F Qala & Assoclatas Triboard Deialls Drawn R G Revised R |.:||B'_ No 93031
a Checked Date 29/8/95 Sheet 30

14" Aphal 6t Orakel AUCKLAND 5

PhiFax 09 521 0364 Panel bracing values

Date 24/3/94
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tvemnasasressirdrn ___.:.__.........;‘..4 . Pitch
: s |~ 100 or*150 x 50 rafters ..
: : - at’ 600 ors .
Qe . Fix shaeis to rafters
o - lelh 60 mm nalls at 300 crs ° Triboard gable ‘
........... () | end wall Jomm board celling
& (1] wall . ]
- Bupporting weT® 100 or 160 x |5t
: : ) 7 rafters at 600 c¢rs
\\ Colling sheot folnt
AP [ ' L _ .
~ Supporting walls

Typical Plan

Showing sheet layout

L B
: Roof pitch
! .
- R
5
- :
1 | : = : -
. Typical Section | Section through dormer : 7
! . -
| For detalls see Sheet 19 :_.‘
“ L] T 1 sl l, i 1 1 1 |}
. 3 4 [} T [ ) 4
Span e
| ’ s
prawe 1ot ACTRANZ vy R F Gals & Asecclates Triboard- Deta“S . Drawn R G Revised HG_ Flle No 23031 i
14 Apthal B1 Orakel AUCKLAND & . Checked Date 26/8 Sheet 28 {
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Table67 < - B ol S 3
Triboard Lintels - Cantilevered Lintels see Page 3

Lintel Maximum Roof only or recf and
Span spanof walls onty where linte! walls only where linte!
member  thickness {mm) is " thickness (mm) is
___ supported 32 36 213 32 36 2/3

Roof only or roof and

‘A¥Lightroof ©  Separate linte! Lintel integral with panel

o
18 8 231 224 178 135
: 12 264 256 204 155 150118

2.1 8 284 275 218 166 161 128
12 325 315 250 190 184 146
24 8 339 329 261 198 182 153
12 388 376 299 227 220 175
27 8 396 385 305 232 225 179
12 454 440 350 . 265 258 204
3.0 8 456 443 351 267 250 206
12 - 402 305 296 235
3.3 8 399 303 204 233
12 457 . 347 337 267
3.6 8 448 340 330 262
12 : 389 378 300
4.2 8 400 + 2/2 angle brace
6.0 8 400 + 50 x 8 flat bar

B Heavy roof Separate fintel Lintel integral with panel

18 8 285 277 220 167 162 129

12 327 7 37 252 191 185 147

2.4 8 350 340 270 . 205 199 158
: 12 401 389 309 235 228 181
.24 8 419 406 323 245 238 189
| 12 . 369 280 272 216
27 8 o7 287 278 221
' 12 432 328 318 253
3.0 8 434 330 320 254
12 : 377 366 291

33 8 , 374 . 363 288
S12 420 416 330

36 8 : 421 408 324

12 : : : : 371
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Triboard Lintels Downstairs
Lintel House Roof, wall and
Span  width floor where lintel
thickness (mm) is
36 - 2136
Light roof *  Separate lintel
12 6 239 180
: 7 250 198
8 260 . 207
g 270 - 215
1.8 6 321 285
7 337 267
8 351 278
9 364 289
1.8 8 410 325
7 430 - 341
B 447 355
8 368
21 6 399
7 419
.8 436 .
9 452
24 8
7
8
.9
2.7 6
7.
8
9

Lintel integral with panel

Roof, wall and
floor where lintel
thickness (mm) is

36

140

2/36

1

146 116

192
158

188
187
205
213

240
251
261
271

294

309

321
333
382
368

384
368

- 411

432
448

o t— -

121
125

149
156
163
169

160 -

189
208
215

234
245
255
265
279
293

305
316

326
342
358
370

Floor and partitions

where lintel

thickness (mm) is
38 2/36

Separate linte!

213

223
233
241

286
300
313
325

365
.383
399
415

449

169
177
185
192

227
238
249
258

280
304
317
329

356
373
389
404

425
446
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Lighl ot heavy roof cladding o '
Truss roof as per NIS 3604 _ : T
. ® ‘
%, @
\ %
Nlﬂg Insulation R = 3 4.% ”
XI0 CIRRAA0 " Q
QRURTRIEes \-\__-E:\‘__._\ Roof Insulation R = 2
18 or 20mm board - o :
celling {er glb board -
ofling (or 9 ) . Wall R value 1.04
‘Tilboard wall panel
47 x 47 baliens
42 or 36mm Trboard al 60G0crs ’ \
internal well .
Perforated retlective _Wall R value 1.5
foll
20mm Strandboard floor .
Timber Jolsts Stesl Jolsts at
800 crs 10
18 or 20mm board gpan full wldih
caliing {or glb board)
) Exterlor cladding ‘
as selacted
a8mm Triboard
Intornal wall downstalrs
N
d,
Timbet or concrsle floor

: Sublicor and floor as per NIS 3604 O tiOl"lS
Typical cross section P

st AGTRANZ b1 Gdo Clarke Associater | TribOArd, Residential Details g’““’“ ': a -Revised DT Job No 93031
14 Aghai 5t Ordkei Ph/Fax 04 521 0364 - T I | G o t hecke Date 23/7/96. A h »
% B Waters 9t Honk Ph/Fax (4534 6771 - 1yp Ca ross sseclien Date 2411194 Sheet 15






Truss to calling P28

Truss roof P27

>

- Truss to wall P26
__ Celling to” wall P26

L ﬁattan_to panel P27

@7
Skillion roof P35 /
L Wali/tloor/wall P27
|- Electirical detalls P32
Pansl to
.. anel - Ell P25 \C%/ Ext wall to
Panei o

" nt wall to

© lanel to
panel - Tee P25

=

nanel - Butt P25

L

Jdmber floor P24

=xt wall to

Imber floor P24

will be used.

KEY TO DETAILS

concrete floor P24

Int wall te
concrete floor P24

Note - where alternative detalls are shown
check with to liksly pansi supplisr as which

Sheet 21

=

r""‘“ﬁ






T Y T T
1 1
-I..j 1
as detall 2 - or ply bailen naiten
i 75 mm nalls skewed not shown to ftoor with 40 x
i inla finor at 600 2.8mm nalls at
| 'y .¢rs from each side 300 ore
) | {pra drllled holes) |
) I .
[+ FAY .
i . 30 x 2mm nalls - Batten nalled ta
Ji X through panel |I _ conoraie with
i Blooking undar Into batten at I © 30 x amm oconcrete
walls not required
3

- 100 mm nalls or
2 - 100 mm ecrews

@Exterior wall to timber

@Interior wall to timber

300 crs from |l nalls at 300 cre
vach side \,

L]
P\
D f\“'-

@Intenor wall using batte,

DPC If wot

Joint as detalil 211\

4. 90 x 818 ' \

nails per dleat’
NOT gib clouta

Lumberiok
bottom plate

Angle 4 - 30x Anchors ai
3.15 nalls 1200 crs
~ /5|l per oleati along wall
I W )/ \ NOT gib clouts 3 anchore at
. A8 600 crs at
:? l:‘;':ﬂ:’f: *7mm ventilation ond of wal

slot
adga of slab

@Exterlor wall to concrete

34 x 40 x 12 sgteal -
. angle or 30 x 30 x 1.6mm

aluminlum angle or approved . *
aqual

i 30 x 3.16mm screws
| -al 260 crs

30 x 3.15 dla conorete
nalls at 250 crs

(5) Interior wall to concrete

50 x 32 x 2mm [
aluminiun 1ee

Exterlor wall simiar, use anchors as detall 4

@lnterior wall to concrete

W Aphal 81 Orakel AUCKLAND 6
PhiFax 09 521 0384
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Triboard details
- Panel to floor fixings
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Date 26/8

Flle No 93031
Sheet 1

P | s T A S
PR ¢ e s e r 1 B
" L L

L M e






r ——— ——t ——— U e o R .- . - - ——— ~ - ; -°| " . i
o i ! . H I . . i .
a .

— ' I
= —— T T H " . Rebate o asslst
Stepped T 10mm step on sdge of exch panst , alignment. Nornally

L e6mm nalls 200 wide strip of Fix with 28mm sorews at 2000rs H / 5 mm daap (optional)

at 200 ors parent board S— _ — T
vn or 80ffim screw ST BT gervios duot

at 400 ors , Tongue with duct \ 30 x 1.2mm ply tongue Teo " 75mm nails at 300crs or

) Fix with 2.5mm dia brads al 200 on 76mm acrewe at 400crs
X Io—= X = | ‘\
— = — Internal tongue \ 30 x émm hardbbard longus

\ \ : Fix with 2.8mm dla brads al 200 cr |
. . —— ——— ——
Vee sdge and - = === : -

Parlorated reflactive

foll under batiens atop Joint e | \
Iai xternal tongue 80 x f.2mm steal or 50 x Omm Tee and panel joint
(or alternative insulation) ply atrlp with two rows of Panels butt jointed at tee

28mm screws at 200mm cra Two rows of fixings ae
Slop over atrip . above

@Exterior wall butt joint @Interior'wall butt joint '@Tee joint

Note: PVA, Sturdibend, or simlliar glus may be usqdd to assit with site assembly i [} Is not structured.
. . ’ . -

_, |
) \ 76mm nalis at 300cra or : // Structural joints (n panel may be faotory glued
. 75mm screws al 400crs s using Polymer Developments Chemtec
;o ‘ )\ ,// TAB or aeqlvalent {Epoxy). “
— —— = —= When sanded and palnted they are
7 . not visibla and may be Ignored for
noermal structural and practical purposes.
V Garner- may bo\ / _ Further Informatlon on requast.
- \HE rebaled as per
100 x 50 = - Detall 4 76mm nalis at 300crs or . — —
Jl><]: - 76mm scrows at 400crs
from both sides

@ Outside corner @ Inside corner mitred - @ Factory glued joints

[Dmm 1ot ACTRAN by A F Que a Anaoo!atuJ Triboard Datails Drawn D Ta Revised RG Flle No 93031

14 Apihal 81 Otakel AUCKLAND § - ~Checked RG Date 6/10/94 Sheet 2
Ph/Fax 08 521 0364 Panel to panel fixings ' pate 20/2/94
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géomm nalls at 300cra or
60mm Posldrive screws
at gooers

\ 18 or 20mm board_calling

Trboard wall pansl

@ Wall to ceiling

2-30mm nalls
/ in top holes
i Lumberlok CPC40
cleal.or . similar at
| 600crs

\ 2.16mm screws

into " ¢slling

@ Ceiling to truss

SR|'Iaaw"'tr:ut o

\\ - FIx each slde of
u ceiling -to" wall:

Max 4m apart or room elze.

Ceiling -movement joint

~_ 2-75mm nails to rafter
per batten

if battens carried up 1o
rooi lNne, fruss not required

If truss fitted, rafter truss
may be usad,

T Batten

\—— Board _celling

Note:

h Batten length above
_celling not to excead langth
“in equlvalent qable truss

@ Gable end wall

1 Multlgrip or
2 wira dogs

=

Note:

Multigrip recommended
a8 wire dog legs dimple
innar face of board.

@ Truss to wall

{ —

Let In tonéue L \\ 60 x 10mm board tongut¢

glved and nailed
20mm brads at 150crs

131 o
Batten \-\200 x 20mm board
' - N 30mm- screws at 200crs
. o ' . " .
T4
Steel strap - - - \\60 x 12mm steel strip

16mm screws al 200crs

Note:
Stop cellings wllh flaxlblo plaster
to ptavant cracking -

@ Ceiling site butt joint

14 Apthal 81 Orakel AUCKLAND §

brawn lot ACTRANI  br R F Gale & Assoclaies
PhiFex 0B 621 0384

- Triboard Details
Panel to roof fixings Date

Drawn D.TA
Checked ARG
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e e e e o S U S —= /7 T3 TRy T T
Upper floor jolst shrinkage For twe storsy censtruction extend battens fo _overlap the “other® Note 3
A wet 200 x 50 jolst will shrink ' panel by 300mm. Fix 10 the "other" penel with 4-75 mm nalls. When fixing double battens .
§-8mm g It dries. This will create to achelve R = 1.58 wall
a gap at floor level . tack Inner battens with 30
Minimise this effect by: Linte! may be hung - - " mm nalls. Use nalls or screws
.- using dry lolsts or steel Jolsts from wall above If ) _ | as shown to flx second battens
- not nafling the overlapping battens  the wall ls contlnuoug O \ ) strandboard
. : ; . SRt . N g . Strandboard floor
un}ll the ]olst:s have drl?d N \ \ M) ! " First floor _ :T!» a
. E——————— \ ‘ A0 ;T —'__m | __- End Jolst or nog
]— : : | : ' i ] between Jolats
Two || Four [ : : ' \ 1 1 -l Il 1 | | 300 min \__hh_
at 100 [{ -at 100 f| ° : 2 S o | | H _L overtap Board oelling
: : s s ’ A ' .
\ : = * '{ * . 91" . Triboard penel
4 \ Double stiifaner 75mm nalls . 5 .
: . It required. See - at 300crs . [ —— lBalIen
o W | Note 2 . . \
: : : Double batten — | Note 1
Four . || Six g o R H required. See i A A  Use double batten (or 100
at 500 ‘at 270 : ‘ Note 2 x 60) beeide openinge 2400
: S | | e =T — Lo . . ' [ . or more wide and more than
: © 800 from a 'stiffoning panel,
] N \ . _ L | . * 1 _ ‘(Panel at 90 degrees)
li Use 100 x 50 beslde lower
. 8 N " Le ! " floor windowe 1000 or
: : | i 1 " " " ‘ | greater wide. '
Two | Fouwr {1 ’ i " - ' "
'lat 100 M at 1 q X K s L ' § Qround floor —_J Note 2 \ :
: : ‘ i . : |L150 min :1 Use double batten (or 100 S
: e — = R 50 x 50 baltens at = x 50) stiffener on lintel and
.Serew . Nall : _ sl edge on windows more =
‘epacing gpacing €00crs except as noted venillatien slots: - 20mm gaps &t ende of than 2000 wide In high 5
. : blocking or 6 saw cuts S5mm wide x 25mm wind areas B
deep or two 20mm dia holes per batten )
space.
Nallg: 75mm hd galv skewed to prevent dimpling ot surfane Note: On thls drawing nail fixinge are shown. Screwe may be used Instead.
Scrows: 75mm roofing screws 4.2mm dia Uee two 75mm screws for every thres nafis shown.
. H rawn D.T :
prawn tor ACTRANZ vy RF Gale & Assoclalea Trlboard Detalls ghGCKBdD A ‘ g::lse;;[?fagﬁ JOb NO 93031

14 Apihal 81 Oraks! AUCKLAND 3

FiFax 80 881 0304 Batten fixings Date 19/3/93 Sheet 4 ;
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' Nalling: Roof up to
[ 8m soan -2 nalls
/1 10 3

12 4

AT Continuowt
boundary Joist

100mm nalls
as above

Bearer

@ Cantilevered joists

Muliigrips:
3 - 100mm nalls ' to Bm span
plus Multigrips I‘ One Multigrip to
as above \ [ avéry second jolst
X ~ to tDm span

\r One Multigrip per
5 joist

to 12m apan
Twe Multigrips per
jolst ’

@ Cantilevered joists

\ 2 - 100mm nalls

per Jolst

@ Boundary joist supported

- light roof - heavy" roof on a bearer
Nall nogs as per NZS 3604
@ Nogs between joist: @ @
Drawn D.TA Ravised RG File No 93031
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/ Triboard pansl
B

Reinforced . Corner of

Corner of - 6-30mm x
. I d nel
‘-'-I"-‘"bc"‘“eopc I Batten Triboard pa 6-30mm X . Triboard panosl 3.15 dla nalls
stab on / - (NOT gib
on hardiill / DPC i wet \ll 3.15 dla nalls clouts
\ l! | ~ " (NOT gib Lumberfok CPC40 3 )
— i1 e Ex 150 x 50 H3 Lumbartok CPC40 . N clouts) GPCA0 oleat - .
T CPC40 oleat 5 Trim to width 1
A treatod cast In o |
. v Trim to width as necessar
TRTA RS timber member as nocessary , y N
\ M12 anchor bolts -I ~. CPC40 fixed to floor
at 1200crs Two 75mm with two 6 mm din

Shuredrive anchors

5mm dla roofing SDM 650

scraws Inlo nog

6 kN fi

Dynabolt anchor

N

40 mm face of board
to edge of slab

concrete floor slab under floor 3 kN fixing to concrets
| @ cast in boundary joist @ 6 kN fixing to timber floor floor
4 - 30 x 3.5 Joint as de{a[l 2/1 Teiboard
Face of 8-30mm x nalls per ofeat \ battens
Triboard panef 3.15 dia nalis Not glb clouts AN : Twenty Type 17 rooling
\ g:'g;s}g'b * sorows 30 mm long 5 mm
souare — Lumberlolc 58N dia (14 gauge)
yvg TP bottom plate / / | -onin 5 mm hotes in
washer T fixing anchor Anchors at &€ anchors at S i strap for sorsws
. \ 1200 crs 100 c¢re at %) E h
Angle —__ along wall end of wall sl | Notch batien over
CE2X cleat fixad to floor i atrap
with one 12 mm dia _f’.'_’i. 7 mm veontilation slot Rowmac B78 rag sirap

T~ Conerete floor

Exterior wall to concrete

xing to concrete @ Exterior wall to concrete @
floor 28 kN fixing 34 kN fixing
W AGTRANZ by 1 r asle & amsontes | Standard Triboard Details g:lz";:ad[’-” Revised DTQ File No 83031
4 Apat $1 Grakel AUCKLAND 6 . . s . Date 23/7/96 Sheot &
* phiFax 0 521 0364 Special fixings | Date 19/3/94






O _ I o _ — . S .
W .= : 1 z ‘ _ ' T T : i
7 S0mm gap 1o board

(40 to batten)

' Triboard panal

Lumberlok bottem plate Dﬁc it Jm - Lumberlok bottom plale _ ’,\ Batten
framing anchor -nalled to ‘wet h framing anchor nalled to . ,t‘
battens with two 30 x 3.15 | \ ”"’ pansl with four 30 x 3.8 ’ !l Brick - cladding
dia nalls {NOT glb clouts) ‘ . | dia nalls {NOT gib clouts) ' | Fix panel as por Shoat
For anchor epacing P } 7‘ For anchor spacing ! [ p
889 Sheet 1 Tt e s TRy sev Shaat © . : , 1 —~ Jolst
o 87ann :- < . - ' v . .
et ly v tra, T~ Step Iocatlon optional , - Nog set back

100 % 50 plate on dpe

~— 80 mm gap to board {4¢ to batten} ' ; : - | M2 anchor bolis at 800 ors
Fix brick tles 1o battans ><| :

250 wide bond beam on
/ 200 block wall under

@ Anchor nailed to batten @ Anchor nailed to panel @ Brick veneer on block basement !
q‘_’__m .
h 1 Triboard panst |
I|| " Batten , :
T cladding

\ Flx panel as per Sheet 1 | . : 3

T Boundary Jolst or nog belwaen

, T 100 x 50 plate on dpc
‘ M12 anchor bclta at 900 cre

___—— 200 block wall under

@ Timber floor on block base @ | . . @

Triboard Details Drawn R G Revised RG Flls No 93031

o Chocked Date 26/8 ‘Sheet 7
masonry Date 20/2/94 - :

14 Aplhal 81 Orakel AUCKLAND &
PhiFax 09 521 0364

Panel to floor fixings

| {mun tor ACTRANZ b R £ Gale & Aesociates
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Board celling
(not shown)

Min lintel
depth 390mr

Lintel double
i required

Double batter
or 100 x 50O
Fit tightly under
doubler if fitted

Span Table - gable end
Light roof

600mm .overhang

Rafter truss span Bm max
Single thickness

81 s2

1.0 .

Doubte _thlcknass lintel S1 - 1.2 ::
The short lintsl S1 may be doubled ~ Standard wall 1.4 1.9'
as required. Extend back at least 1.2 m battens not 1'3 1.7

show
past the doubled batten and nail to the Double thickness

panel with 76mm nalls skewed along top an : | , 1.8 3.0
bottom edges. ' '

prawn tor ACTRANZ vy R F Qale & Assoclatos Triboard Detalils g’:ﬂz:aga i Revised RG File No 93031
14 Apihal BI Orukel AUCKLAND & . ‘ Date 26/8 Sheet 12
PhiFax 00 521 0364 Corner lintels Date 7/5/94 :






20 x 10mm groove
20 dla hole drilled at faclory for switch cable

or on site \ e

N ==

Section C Duct behind door Jamb

B B c J 1 C
t Optlon —
. 20 dia hote —— __:-: :-—.__-—-———'
drllled from I

edge % Grooce for cable
- Board glued over

Section B Duct In mid wah

Power outlat
300 from Al
(] 20 dia hatle

floor except .
as noled — 20 dia hole .
. - 50 x 70 hole

O routed far swlitch

100 from edge "
Wall Elevation - typical details

(or 50 dia hole)

MNotes: SBave 30% of cable by running the tlvo wire from light to light
over the celling with a branch to each switch .
Fixtures on outelde walls do not requlre ducting

Swileh boxes are not required : Detall A Switch beside door
Ducts may be cut al factory or on slte - check wllh manulaclurer ) .

Standard Details Drawn R G~ Revised RG File No 93031

prawn tor ACTRANZ by R F Gals & Associntes '
14 Apihal Bt Otaks! AUCKLAND 6 . . Chacked Date 26/8 Sheet 14 .
PhiFax 09 521 0384 Electrical services Dpate 18/2/94 : ;
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B

fi—__-_

Bend 10 mm camb'af Inte board when nalllng stesl

Support —
80mm nalls at

30mm nalls at mm cr8 In centre

. ... MM Cr8  ——
staggerad for
_...mm from end

w
|

e t——

....mm X f
W ..... m

\ 1 flat bar

i\\ l!‘\ .

|\l‘1" ’ {

@ Flat bar on side | @ Flat bar on side-
between two beams at corpa.rs

Alternative bar arrangements

n
e r—

Flat bar on top
and bottom edges

~Note: Ear size and nall spacing to be glven by the designer

30mm nalls at
....mm ors

staggered for
...mm from and

Note: : .
Nalls to be 30 x 3.56 dia
gutter bracket nails
NOT gib clouts

lmwn t ACTRANZ b R F Galo & Assoclates ] - Standard Details

Drawn D.TA

. . Checked
Steel stiffened lintels Date 11/5/94

14 Aglhat Bt Oraksl AUCKLAND 6
PhiFax 08 521 0364

Reovised RG
Date 26/t

Flle No 93031
Sheet 16






humunaat e S e T :
Rebate Nallon plate if this 200 .
dotall ysed for interlor walls | | Nall al 300 along edges ~_
Tty t Ve e~
.t E: * : 4:’ *
P hie t ) E .
10 nalls peor 300 x 50 x 1mm . fs‘ L 16 nails 0l e 8 nalls or
slde or at Nailon or Multibrace Priee cach side 16 nalls or _{o+ie T T
noted PN or as noted as noted vl
B v ¥ o ¥ PR Y
30 x 6mm Nalls 80 x :
hardboard or - 30 x 3.16 gutter 3.15 hd galv or “\\ Batten Hght Nalls 60 x Batten tight
30 x 12mm bracket nalle. NOT as noted under doubler 3.15 hd galv under doubler
ply tongue gib clouts - or as noled
= 1 | 1
——1 — ——
l—1 150 lap

Separate lintel with
Nailon splice plate

Separate lintel with
- Triboard blocking

Separate Ilntell with
full length doubler

] \ A
18 nails or "
as noted .l
(As detalt 2) |, . : g
i _—

Lintels over 4m long factory glued to lenglh
using epoxy glue & plywood tongue.

Stagger Joints when assembling layers on site.

A\
\\ 1\

T I |

[ I

@ Lintel (and doubler).

over 4m long

Lintel as per Table 8.7

Angle Brace 2 or 4 lengths as specliled.
Nall at 200crs with 30 x 3.15 dia gutter
bracket nalle at 100 crs for im from each

and.

.Lintel with angle
brace stiffening

Lintel as Table 6.7 or as specified. Full length
flat bar as speclfied. Nall to inner lintel with
30 x 3.55 dia gutter brackst nalls at 150crs
and 75crs frem 1m from each end.

Prop 6m lintel up In centre to give 6mm
camber before nalling bar to firat tayer of
Triboard.

@ Lintel with steel stiffening

IR T .. P
SRR s e e

TV e, Ve

14 Apihal B4 Orakel AUCKLAND 8
Ph/Fax 09 521 0364

\Drmn tor ACTRANZ b R F Gate & Assoclates ] Triboal'd deta"s

Lintel fixings

Drawn RG

Checked
Date 2/9/94

Revised RG
Date 26/¢

File No 93031
Sheet 18






Key to details

Eroctlon Sequence

4 - 100 mm nalls
per crossing

Detall B -
Ridge

200mm wide strip
‘of board. Fix with

Detail D
Ridge at support wall

" Nafion strip .2mm x 50 wide

x 300 long. Nail with 30 x
, . 8.5mm nalls in 2 out of 3
" holes  evenly spaced Hammer

_to .20mm radlus over apex.

Fix rafter 1o wall with
CPC 40 cleata at 1200 cors
One 75 mm screw per cleat into wal

This rool i3 not self suppnrling PVA and 30mm
untll complete - Take care. scrows at \ \\
1 - Stand side and end walls. 150¢rs to l N
2 - Joln sheets to glve one fength each edge . . )
trom ridge to eaves Detail E Batten size ||\
3 - Erect temporary supporis on ridge Horlz sheet Joint to suit wall | at 100 ors
line and mid slope Sloping jolnts similar or as per height ' down rake
4 - Fix battens to underslde of celling sheet Dolall 8 Sheet 3 in Triboard Manual '
to prevent sfiding : Detail G
5 - Place shests along full length both sides
and flx sheets 1ogether : :
6 - Fix to gable end or hip and ridge Fix sheets to - . _
7 - Lay rafters and purlins over and fix 60mm nalls rafters with 60 mm - b
8 - Complete all fixinge as per details at 150crs nalls at 300 ors :
9 - Place Insulation, wiring, raofing 50mm wide x tmm
10 - Remove props C _Naflon x 300 lon
. Ratter fixing | Fll 2 ot 3 holes
Notea: ‘ : ag NZS 3604 \ with 30mm nallg
Malls - 30mm are 30 x 3.15 dla gutter : Or all holes with -
bracket nails. NOT gib clouts. Detail A Detall' F' 18mm screws
- 60mm are 60 X 2.8mm hd galv flooring nails Shest eaves foint
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SURFACE WATER

ACCEPTABLE SOLUTION E1/AS1

Table 3: Acceptable jointing: methods

Paragraph 3.5.2
Pipe materiai Jointing metheod Standard
Concrete Rubber ring 1 NZS/BS 2494
Ceramic Rubber ring or rubber sleeve " NZS/BS 2494, NZS 3302
Vitrified clay Rubber ring or rubber sleeve. . NZS/BS 2494, NZS 3302
Steel Rubber ring, welded or flanged NZS/BS 2494, NZS 4442, NZS/BS 1560
Ductile iron Rubber ring or flanged AS 2280
UPVC Rubber ring or solvent welded NZS/BS 2494, NZS 7643, AS 1254
HDPE Heat welded or flanged NZS/AS 2033
ABS Solvent welded or flanged NZS 7609

3.5.2 Accentable jointing methods and the
relevant standards are given in Table 3. Jointing
of drains shall be subiect io the tests called for in
Paragraph 3.8.

3.5.3 Where a drain consisis of concrete,
caramic. vitrified clay or rubber ring jointed steel or
UPVC, a flexibie joint shall be installed within
225 mm of the outside wall of any access chamber
or inspection chamber. but outside the line of the
base (see Figures 11 and 12).

Comment:
This alfows lor differential settlement between the

access chamber. or the inspection chamber, and the
pipe line while minimizing damage (o the pipeline. . -

3.6 Surface water inlets to drains

3.6.1  All surface water. except that collected .
directly from a roof, shall enter the drain via a

sump which has:

a) Agrating, hinged orremovable for maintenance
access. The grating shall comprise &t least
35 % openings. The smaller dimension of any
individual opening shall not exceed 35 mm,

b) Capacity atthe bettom for settternent of silt and
debris, and

c) Asubmerged (ortrapped) outletwhich prevents
floatabie solids entering the drain.

Building Industry Authority

17

3.6.2 Two different sumps are shown in
Figures 8 and 9. The sump shown in Figure 8 is
suitable for an area of up to 4500/ m2 and the
sump illustrated by Figure 9 is suitable for an
area up to 40.000/l m2, where i is the rainfall
intensity for a storm with a 10 2% probability of
occuring annually. {See Paragraph 3.2.2).

Figure 8: Type-one surface water

sump
Paragraph 3.6.2

300 x 3G0mm opening
with hinged cr Crcssfafl
removable cover

/
@M@é
Eamcvable
access cep

—-I

%f)
SN

3‘3 75mm
dia.

1000mm  max,

I' 300mm
o, 17

\\\\\\\\\\

[

Concrete seal
to basa of

Section sump

July 1692
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CONDITIONS OF ISSUE

The issue of this report is subject to the conditions set out in the
"CONDITIONS APPLYING TO TESTS CARRIED OUT BY THE ASSOCIATION" (BRANZ Cat.
No 88-3 June 1988).

Attention is drawn in particular to the following clauses:

17.

18.

19.

A Test Report does not imply approval by BRANZ of any ltem for ‘any
particular purpose and therefore no statement or advertlsement shall
state or imply approval by BRANZ. e

If the client is the manufacturer or accredlted agent of the
manufacturer of the item, the client may publish: -

(a} the Test Report verbatim and in full. SRS

(b) a statement that the item has been tested by BRANZ provided
the statement includes the Test Report No. and an offer to
supply a full copy of the Test Report free of charge.

The Director's prier written consent must be obtained before:

(&) any extract or abridgement of the report is published:

(b) any statement {except as per 18b) that an item has been tested
by BRANZ is published.

(c) the Report is used in or referred to in connection with any
company prospectus,

(e) any client other than the manufacturer or accredited agent of
the manufacturer, may refer to or publish the Test Report or
any ex{ract.
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r REPORT ON THE FIRE RESISTANCE PROPERTIES OF A LOADBEARING DOUBLE SKINNED
WALL, WITH 38 MM TRIBOARD ON EACH SIDE.

1. INTRODUCTION
1.1 Client

Juken Nissho Ltd.
P.0. Box 153

- Kaitala
NEW ZEALAND.

1.2 Test Specification

The test was conducted in accordance with Australian Standard 15330.4-1990
Fire Resistance Tests of Elements of Building Construction. This states

1 that the fire resistance of a loadbearing test specimen shall be the time,
expressed in minutes, to failure under one or more of the following
criteria:

1.2.1 Structural Adequacy

Failure in relation to structural adequacy shall be deemed to have
= occurred when collapse occurs.

1.2.2 Integrity

For an element intended to separate spaces and resist the passage of flame
from one space to another, failure in relation to integrity shall be
deemed to have occurred upon collapse, or the development of cracks,
fissures, or other openings through which flames or hot gases can pass.

1.2.3 Insulation

Failure in relation to insulation shall be deemed to have occurred when
either: -

(a) The average temperature of the relevant thermocouples attached to
- the unexposed face of the test specimen rises by more than 140 K
above the initial temperature ; or
-,
(b). The temperature of any of the relevant thermocouples attached to the
unexposed face of the test specimen rises by more than 180 K above
k. the initial temperature,

Lu

TELARC
" REGISTERED N
LAHORATORY S

This Laboratory is registered by the Testing Laboratory Registration Council of New Zealand.
The tests reported herein have been performed in accordance with its terms of registration.
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2. DESCRIPTION OF THE TEST SPECIMEN
2.1 General

The test specimen consisted of a nominal 2.9 m high x 3.01 m wide x 114 mm
thick loadbearing wall, with 38 mm Triboard panels on both sides and
Triboard batten framing. The specimen was constructed in the centre of a
nominal 3 x 3 m opening in a concrete lined specimen holder. All framing
and panels were constructed with standard density Tribeard.

Vertical joints between Triboard panels were formed over 150 x 38 mm
Triboard battens, with additional battens of the same size at 1 metre
spacing on each panel. Panel joints were staggered by at least 1 m
between sides of the wall.

The Triboard edge battens were fixed flush with panel edges. Nominal 50 x
38 mm strips were used at the top and bottom of the wall and nominal 75 x
50 mm on the sides. The panels were fastened to the battens with 60 x 10
gauge screws at approximately 300 mm centres. The top and bottom
perimeter battens were bolted to the specimen holder. 50 x 50 mm timber
packers were located at 450 mm centres on the top of the wall specimen to
simulate floor joist supported on the wall system. The packers were
covered on the exposed side with 38 mm thick Triboard strip and the space
between the packers were filled with mineral fibre wool. The sides of the
specimen were not restrained.

Actua% Triboard panels and battens used were as follows
Thickness 38 mm
Average Density 660 kg/m3
Average top plate dimension 97 x 47 mm

The layout of panels and battens are shown in Figure 5.

3. TEST PROCEDURE
3.1 General

The test was conducted on the 28th of November 1991, at the BRANZ
laboratories at Judgeford, New Zealand, in the presence of representatives
of the client,

The frame containing the test-specimen was sealed to the furnace, and the
temperature and pressure conditions controlled as specified in AS 1530.4-
1990. The average ambient temperature at the beginning of the test was
14.7°C.






FrK Lpoa»

17 December 1991

. B R A N z Page 5 of 12 Pages
Test Report

- shown in Figure 3 and 4.

3.2 Loading

At the request of the client a load of 20 kN per metre length was applied
to the wall. The load was monitored using a load cell placed between each
of the three jacks and the platen, connected to a continuously reading
recorder. This load was applied one and a half hours before the
commencement of the test. The test was carried out with the -load applied
to the wall for the first one hour. After this time the load was reduced
correspondingly to maintain the vertical deflection of the panel at the
same level as it was at the one hour mark and the test continued as for a
non - load bearing wall. “

3.3  Furnace Temperature Measurement

The temperature of the atmosphere within the furnace was measured using
twelve chromel - alumel thermocouples distributed evenly on a vertical
plane approximately 100 mm from the exposed face of the specimen.

3.4 Specimen Temperature Measurement

The temperature on the unexposed face of the test specimen was measured
using chromel - alumel thermocouples in accordance with AS 1530.4-1990,
Section 2.2.3.1. Five thermocouples were placed on the wall, ome at the
mid-point, and one at the approximate centre of each of the quarters as
shown on Figure 5.

Additional thermocouples were ﬁlaced on the cold face of the exposed side-

panels at the same points as the five standard thermocouples and in the
cavities between battens at approximately the third points wvertically
along and at equal distances from either layer.

3.5 Temperature Recording

All the thermocouples described in sections 3.3 and 3.4 were connected to
a computer controlled data logging system which sampled the temperatures
at one minute intervals.

3.6 Pressure Measurements

The pressure difference between the furnace and laboratory atmospheres was
adjusted such that it was greater than 8 Pa over the top two thirds of the
specimen. The pressure was monitored using a micromanometer connected to a
continuously reading recorder.

3.7 Deflection Measurements.

3.7.1 Out of Plane Deflections

The deflection of the specimen was measured using a theodolite and rule.
Measurements were taken at 10 minute intervals on all deflection peoints

S
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3.7.2 Vertical Deflection

The vertical deflection of the loading platen was measured using two
linear potentiometers, one at each side of the specimen. These
potentiometers were connected to the computer controlled data logging
system which sampled the deflections at one minute intervals.

4, OBSERVATIONS
4.1 Duration

The test was terminated after the specimen had been exposed to the
standard fire resistance test for 92 minutes. '

4.2 Severity

The severity of the fire resistance test can be established by comparison
of the area under the curve of the mean furnace temperature with the area
under the standard curve for the same period. Figure 1 shows the standard
curve in relation to the actual mean furnace temperature. The severity of
this test for 92 minutes was 101 %

4.3  Structural Adequacy

The specimen carried the applied load for the duration of the preload, and
for the first 60 minutes for the test without failure. There was no
structural failure for the.remaining 32 minute duration ¢f the test with
corresponding reduction in load to maintain 60 minute deflection levels.

4.4  TInsulation

4.4.1 Average-Specimen Temperature Rise

The average specimen temperature rise measured by the relevant
thermoecouples did not exceed the failure criterion of 140 K for the
duration of the test. ' '

4.4.2 Maximum Specimen Temperature Rise

Insulation failure- occurred at a hot spot on the right hand side of the

right hand panel when the hand held thermocouple reading exceeded 180 K at
92.minutes, '

Graphs of the average and maximum temperature rises measured by the five
standard thermocouples are included as Figure 3. :
4.5 Integrity

There was no failure of Integrity for the duration of the test.
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- 4.6 Behaviour of the Wall Specimen.

At 3.5 minutes, the exposed surface had started to blacken and there was
flaming from the surface filling the furnace.

. At 6.0 minutes, there was a lot of smoke coming out from the top and
bottom edges of the wall specimen through gaps in the connection between
the specimen and the specimen holder,

At 8.0 minutes, the exposed surface had begun to char. The joinCS’were
- still intact at this time.

* At 15.5 minutes, the wall panels on the exposed side had begun to shrink
away from the joints and small gaps had formed.

At 18.0 minutes, the gaps at the joints on the exposed side had opened up
further to about 10 mm.

At 45.0 minutes, the gaps on the exposed side had widened to about 25 mm.

At 70.0 minutes, parts of the Triboard covering at the top of the wall had
fallen off allowing smoke to escape through the top right hand side of the
- wall on the unexposed side.

- At 75.5 minutes, the left hand side panel on the exposed side had fallen
off. '

At 77.0 minutes, gaps had formed at the joints on the unexposed side

allowing smoke to pass through them.

At 84.5 minutes, the exposed face of the unexposed side had began to char.

4.7 Deflections
4.7.1 Out of Plane Deflections

The positions of the deflection points are shown on Figure 5, and the
measurements taken on the horizontal and vertical centrelines are shown on
n Figures 3 and 4 respectively.

The maximum deflection recorded was 43 mm and occurred at point G at 80
minutes.

4.7.2 Vertical Deflections

- The maximum recorded vertical deflection of the loading platen was 50 mm
s upwards and occurred at 60.5 minutes read on the potentiometer on the left
hand side of the specimen. ﬁ

I -

JJK
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3. SUMMARY

The fire resistance of the Triboard panel wall specimen lined on both
sides with one layer of 38 mm thick Triboard demsity board is as follows

Structural Adequacy: 60 minutes (Loaded, ¥o Failure)
92 minutes (Unloaded, No failure)

Integrity: 7 92 minutes (No Failure)
Insulation: 92 minutes
6. ATTACHMENTS
Figure 1 Furnace Temperatures
Figure 2 Specimen Temperature
Figure 3 Horizontal Centreline Deflections
Figure & Vertical Centreline Deflecticns
Figure 5 Layout of specimen showing thermocouple and deflection
points.

/
A —

—

P. Marayanan
Fire Research Engineer

ting Supervisor
FOR THE ASSOCIATION
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Fig 1 Furnace Temperatures
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Fig 3 Horizontal Centre Line Deflection
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Cantilever tength (L)
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finished level of deck
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floor level
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washers

oor joists

Building paper
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cut neatly around .
cantilevered joist
with a 5 mm gap
between joist and
cladding

Saddle flashing to

Saddle flashing
see detail below

prevent water
entering (wall
cavity) around
projecting joist

Z flashing to
horizontal D Continuous
cladding joint support behind
Cladding to floor flashing
below or subfloor Boundary Joist
50 mit. el
Cantilevered joist
treated to H3 Hazard Class
of MP 3640 if exposed
P to weather
F/ e Return fold edges
P T to prevent water
L tracking around
< the flashing
Depth of _ NOTE — Seo section 4 for dursbilly requirements.
cantilevered
Joist SOmk. 30 min.

SADDLE FLASHING DETAIL
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INTRODUCTION

- The Tables and Charté included aliow for the design of simple two storey structures without

engineering input. .The details include a number of commonly used fixings which may be used
by designers as appropriate. A design service for larger buildings is available.

The information in this manual has been aranged to follow the numbering system used in NZS
3604 and the relevant sections may be read as an altemative when using Triboard

components.

This manual is copyright.
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GENERAL DESCRIPTION

The TRIBOARD Pane! Construction System is based on sheets of Triboard 2.4m high and up

~ todm wide, from 32 to'50 mm thick and 18mm thick Lakepine MDF for ceilings.

The panels 'ar_e used as perimeter loadbearing and intemal load or non-oadbearing walls in
single storey or multi storey construction of (usually) houses.

The panels are ﬁxed to each other using nails or screws and appropriate hardware and MDF
ceiling panels to provide and integral wall and ceiling system. The joints may be glued and
stopped to provide a flush finish if required.

The eenels are normally factory painted on their faces and edges with a water resistant priming
paint to minimise the effect of site wetting.

The exterior walls are insulated and finished as required, either with 'perforated reflective foil,
battens and any conventional cladding system, or an altemative. Interior wall surfaces must be
pamted papered or finished with any suitable lining material.

The oemng may be constructed using 18 or 20 mm sheets of medium density fibreboard, nailed
or screwed to the top of the wall panels and fixed to the truss bottom chords or rafters. Ceiling
panels may be painted on one or both faces.

Altematively a com}entional framed gib board ceiling may be used.

The roof conétruction is conventional and in accordance with NZS 3604, using roof trusses or
rafters. Any normal roof cladding may be used.

The foundations and building platform may be specifically designed, or constructed in
accordance with NZS 3604 or NZS 4229.

Experience 'over a large number of houses indicates that the sound and thermal insulation
performance of Triboard walls is excellent,





o

11 Scope —

The TRIBOARD Panel Construction System has been specifically designed in accordance with

NZS 420§ to comply ‘with the -appropriate design loadings for domestic buildings. The
components have been designed using well established engineering methods. NZS 3604 and
NZS 4229 can be used to specify the. foundabons burldmg platform and trussed roof structure.

The system es detailed in this manua| is suitable for dwellings and similar buildings within the
scope outhned in Clause 1.12 of NZS 3604 and with the following additional limitations:

Srngle storey or two storey construct]on

Maximum foof pitch - 60 degrees

Maximum ¢ eaves overhand - 600mm

Maximum wall height - as per Tab!e onPage11. *

Max1mum |mte| spans - as per Table 6.7 on Pages 23 & 24. ‘
Rafter or fruss roof, maxrmum truss span 12m {roof dimension "S°, NZS 3604 Figure 36B).

. Snow loads as specrﬁed by NZS 4203 shall not exceed 0.5kPa on light roofs. Snow loads
not el!owed on heavy roofs without specific design.

Noo WMo =

TRIBOARD watl panels are mtended to be used as intemal walls, and as perimeter walls which
are adequately protected against the weather using a properly detailed conventional cladding

system. _

TRIBOARD‘panels must be protected in any situation where frequent wetting occurs or where
condensation is likely. -

In bathrooms Iaundnes or kitchens panels should be protected by water resistant tinings or

otherwise adequately sealed. Detailing should be such that no moisture can be trapped
between the Ilnmg and TRIBOARD panels. -

Parnted trmber or atummrum reveals are recommended at window and door openings in
perimeter walls to protect the panels against the effects of repeated exposure to moisture.

12 St spdaion

For use by Archrtects and others who are using “TRIBOARD Panel Constmctron System in
thetr structures -

~ “TRIBOARD panels and: site fixings shall be as per the current “Triboard Panel Constructron
System® Desrgn and Canstruction Manual”
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1.3 Recommended Design Procedure -

~ When desighing a TRIBOARD Panel house, it is recommended that the following general
. design approach is followed.

1. Draw the'deéired ﬂdor layout plan within the limitations of the relevant bylaw requirements.

2. Select the roof and wall cladding systems and choose the leve! of insulation required from
Pages 12 & 13,

If a wall separating tenancies is require, choose a wall with the required fire and STC rating
from Pages 17, 18.

3. Design the foundations and the building platform specifically or in accordance with NZS
3604 or NZS 4229, taking into account the specific site requirements.
A steel joisted floor or floor and ceiling system may be chosen from Page 19.

s e e REREN

4. Using Table 6.3 in NZS 3604 choose a stud size and from Page 20 in this manual the
Triboard equivalent.

5. Determine the total number and arangement bracing units required in accordance with NZS
3604 990 Tables 6.1 & 6.2 and calculate the bracing available using the bracing values given
for various panel widths and fixings on Page 21.

‘a bracing calculation service is available via panel remanufacturers.

6. Select a truss or rafter roof structure to span between the supporting walls and design the
roof construction to comply with NZS 3604. : -
Altemnatively choose a diaphragm roof from Page 22.

7. Check the lintels and their supports from Page 23.
Check the lower storey walls and lintels for vertical load from Page 24.

8. Select the appropriate con_nectibns and panel grade (normally B) from the standard details
on Pages 27 to 29 and following. ' ‘

Note: Different panel manufacturers use various versions of the details in this manual Check

with your local panel supplier. :

For braging calculations it is recommended that you use the lower of the likely fix values so the
detail actually used is not critical. Use the bracing values for all the panels in the building
rather than special “bracing panels® to avoid special fixings. ,
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2. GENERAL

1.1 Materials
2.1.1 Grade, thickness and durability of board

Panels shall be manufactured from strength grade A Triboard of the comect thickness. The
surface finish shalt be F (first grade for top quality paint) or L (for paint or laminating and
veneer) or appropriate for the panel finishing.

F is recommended and will be supplied unless L is specially ordered and available.

The standard density for TRIBOARD used for panels shall be:

Thickness: 32 35 38 45 50 55 mm
Std density: 662 658 653 642 638 631kg/m3

.

| Triboard sheets of various thicknesses have been tested by BRANZ and in their opinion will be

durable for 50 years. .
(See Related Documents)

2.1.2 Ceiling board

Board used for ceilings may be 18 or 20mm thick medium density fibreboard. Joints must be
made with care to prevent cracking. The moisture content of the board at time of stopping
must be 10% or less. Ceiling insulation must be installed prior to stopping. Movement contral
joints are recommended for large ceilings.

2.1.3 Paint

The paint used on the panel faces and edges shall prevent water entering the board during
construction. A suitable test is that when a wet sponge is placed on the pamted surface and
kept wet i in the same place for 3 days, there is no raising of the surface.

The paint shalt also be swtable as an undercoat for any of the normal finishg coats or for
wallpapering.

Comment
Paints which have been found satisfactory in practice are:

- Fountex Alkyd Board Sealer

- Mirotone 808 Isolating coat (white)
- 2 Pot Epoxy, e.g. Everdure

- Benjamin Moore 2030

5
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- levenes Afchitecturaf Series
- Santana Triboard Sealer
- Resene Acryhc

~

The palnt used must be mixed and apphed in accordance with the manufacturers JﬂStI‘UClIOI’]S
24 Workmanshup and Tolerances
Panels mariﬁfacfered for use in the TRIBOARD Pane! Construction System shall be accepted

provided they comply with the criteria in this manual. The quality table gwes three quality
options.

. 241 Edge Proﬂling

Grooves for tongues - the fongue shall be a finm fit in the groove and must not wobble. The
step between adjacent panels when fitted together shalt be less than 0.5mm.

4

2.4.2 Grooves for the Flooring Fixing Batten

The groove and tongue may be eased to allow easier erection by tapering the edge of the
- batten. The pane! must be tight on the batten when in its final position.

243 Painted Panels .

—

The paint coating must be over the entire face of the panel without skips or hot:days

or holidays. '

If factory sanded the entire surface must be sanded to a "smooth fo the fouch” feel wuth a120
_ grit sandpaper.
m Qutside wall surfaces need not be sanded.

2.4.4 Painted Edges

. In areas where there is likelihood of frequent wetting such as bathrooms, kitchens and
laundries, panels must be protected with an approved water repellent paint. The paint shall be
l|berally applied to seal the surface and the joints.

2.4.5 Marking

All panels shall be clearly marked oﬁ an edge with an identification number to assist with ‘
erection. _

Some manufacturers provide a job identification plate for fixing in a suitable place, .g. hot -

water cupboard.






3 SITE REQUIREMENTS

3.1 Site Preparation Prior to Erection
Check that:

- The fioor plan dimensions are correct and that the panel locating hardware'has been fixed to
the fioor in the correct positions. ' :

- The floor is level.

- The truck can park in a position that allows convenient lifting of panels off the truck and onto
the floor. It is well worthwhile marking the pane! number on the fioor in the correct position
prior to commencing erection.

3.1.1 Site Storage and Handling

If board is stored for any period of time the usual prebautions shou!d be taken, i.e. it must be
kept fiat and dry. As colour changes caused by gluts can be difficult to hide and may show
through paint, it is recommended that cover sheets be kept on the bottom of a pack.

3.2 Weather Exposure

As prolonged éxposure to water causes the panel to swell and this wili delay intemal finishing,
panels should be kept dry. The trusses and roof should be fitted as soon as practicable and if

'delay is expected, the building covered with tarpaulins or similar to keep it dry. Any Triboard

panel that is likely to be exposed to weather or moisture must be adequately sealed.
3.3 Formaldehyde Emission

The surfaces and edges of all boards, floor, walls and ceiling, exposed inside the building must
be sealed to reduce formaldehyde emissions from those surfaces.

3.4 Assembly of Components

3.4.1 General

The assembly of panels on site is a simple process but care must be exercised to put the right

panels in the right place and in the right way round.

“If it doesn’t fit, check the plan; if it doesn’t figure, pick up the phone, NOT the saw”
Panels must not be cut on site without the permission of the remanufacturer.
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It is strongly recommended that erectors visit the site of a house under construction and-
discuss their proposed method with people who have already erected panels.

TRIBOARD marketing staff will be pleased to assist and to provide suitable contacts.
3.4.-2 Identification of Components |

All panels arhlal individuélly marked on an édge with an identifying number.

3.4.3 Panel Erection Sequence

It is recommended that erection start from the “far” side of the building and that panels are
assembled so that each is fixed to one already in place. Check that the panel remanufacturer
knows the proposed sequence so that the panels are stacked in the order they are required.

3.4.4 Bracing of Panels

Provided panels are fixed to each other little or no temporary bracing is required.

T

34.5 Alignment

Before the joints are fixed together, care should be taken to ensure that the panels are plumb
and that their top edges are level. Minor adjustments to panel locations may be made prior to
fixing them to the floor. Gaps 3mm or wider at joints are not acceptable and must be closed.
The strops used to tie the load on the truck make excellent come along.

3.4.6 Joinery

Joinery may be fitted directly into the openings, the 10mm clearance used for stick framing is
not required.

34.7 Ceiling Panels

Ceiling panels may be erected similarly to wall panels. Erect temporary supports in rooms
where the panels are required to span more than 2.4m. Care must be faken to prevent
damage to the panels during erection and to keep the panels correctly aligned and tightly
butted.

3438 Specialist Equipment

Some panel remanufacturers offer an erection service. Altematively panels may be erected -
using a crane or by hand. Note that a 4m panel weighs over 200kg.

349 Cleanfiness

Personnel working on the panels during erection should ensure that they avoid marking or
dirtying the finished surfaces.
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3.4.10 Trussed Roofs - Camber w_
Roof trusses are supplied with a built in camber to allow for deflection under load. About half
of this deflection occurs immediately the truss is loaded and the other half occurs slowly over
the next year. When concrete tiles are used the camber can be up to 15-20m for large spans
and the resulting deflections say 10mm when the tiles are laid and 10mm when the the tiles are
laid and 10mm subsequently. In the majority of cases with a truss span of say 8m and a
camber of 10mm the deflection on loading will be of the order of Smm with a creep deflection to
follow of a further 5mm.

As the ceiling panels are fixed to the tops of the wall panels during erection and propped leve!
from the fioor over the larger spans the ceiling will be level when installed. The trusses when
erected with full camber will span clear above the ceiling panels. It is recommended that the
CPC cleats be fixed to the ceiling in their comect position but not fixed to the trusses unti! the
roofing has been laid and the trusses have seftied. The cleats near the truss supports, where
movement is small, may be fixed before the roof is laid, but where movement is significant, i.e.
near the centre of the span, leave the temporary props in place and do not fix the cleats until
the roof has been in place for a few days.

T

With light metal roofs the deflection is much less, the camber is small, and in most cases the

cleats may be fixed immediately.
3.4.11 Diaphragm Roof Erection

A diaphragm roof is built by connecting each ceiling sheet to form a stiff pane! and the various
panels lean on each other for support. Until the roof is complete the free edges have little or no
strength and must be supported. Temporary support must be provided, usually along the ridge
line, until all panels and fixings are in place. A recommended camber may be shown in the
design.

Rafters provide the stiffness to prevent each panel sagging out of plane arjd it is suggested
that each ceiling pane! is cambered upwards slightly while the rafters are being fixed to the
panels. .

The table mc[udes pitches of 30 degrees and over, lower pitches can be built but are not
included as deflections are greater and are not recommended without prior experience.

3.5 Maintenance Period

As the board used is dry and the panels stiff, no maintenance is normally required.





5 FLOORS REFER TO NZS 3604

m Note that double joists are not required under continuous Triboard walls.

| 6 WALLS
6.1 General |

All perimeter and intemal wall panels are TRIBOARD panels. Walls are normally 2.45m high
but may be up to 4m high using the table in this manual. Higher walls must be specifically
designed.

Panels may be mixed with conventional light timber frame construction as required.

6.2 Systems to resist vertical loads

Wall panels chosen from Table 6.3 in this manual as zn equivalent to studs chosen from NZS
3604 Table 6.3 will resist equivalent loads

6.3 Systems to resist horizontal loads

6.3.1 Bracing

-Sufficient bracing elements shall be incorporated to comply with the requirements of the NZS
3604, Tables 6.1 & 6.2 Ali full height panels without large openings, having a minimum length
of 600mm and fixed in the building in accordance with the appropriate details may be used as
bracing elements. -

Bra_ci_r!g elements should be evenly distributed throughout the buiiding.
6.3.2 Panel Brace Values

As the panel will not deform i.e. remains square and as it is fixed to the floor so that it will not
slide, the brace value for a panel is largely dependent on preventing it overtuming. wide panels
have much more bracing value than narmow panels.

Small openings have little effect and windows up to 2000mm wide x 1200mm high may be .
ignored. Intemal door openings up to 850mm wide may also be ignored provided the lintel is
continuous on one or both sides of the opening. Walls joined to length using either the exterior
or interior joining details shown may be measured as one panel.

The values in the table for each type of fixing preventing overtuming may be added.

i1
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40 CONSTRUCTION REQUIREMENTS

* 44 Foundation and Floor Construction

All foundation and floor platform or lower floor construction shall be specifically designed or
constructed in accordance with NZS 3604 or NZS 4229 as appropriate. The following
additional requirements apply.

411 Trmber Floor

Perimeter wall panels shall be supported by joists and bearers in accordance with the
requirements of NZS 3604 for loadbearing walls. Perimeter wall panels supporting intels
exceeding 2.2m span must be supported by a pile at no more than 200mm measured between
the centreline of the pile and the edge of the panel edge adjacent to the lintel opening.

4.1.2 Concrele F!oor

Concrete floors may have a timber member cast in around the entire perimeter or have framing
anchors cast in. Refer to Detail Sheets 1 & 7 for details.

41.3 Steel Floor Joists

Light rolled steel joists can be used as floor joists in place of timber and the stiffness may be
increased by fixing to the floor above and a board ceiling below.

Either a C (channel) or a Z (zed) section can be used. Fixings, blocking etc: must be as per
the details shown. :
4.1.4 Damp Floor Materials

If the panels are erected onto a damp concrete or timber fioor 2 suitable moisture barvier is
required.

4.2 Baseinent or Lower Storey of Triboard

The erection of the TRIBOARD Panel System lower storey is eésentially identical to the -
erection of a single storey. The infermediate fioor may use either timber or steel joists.

10





6.3.3 Walls without bracing

A board ceiling has similar diaphragm stiffness to a floor. This can be used to design bracing
walls up to 12m apart and buildings without bracing on one exterior wall by using the torsion
stiffness of the walls at right angles to it. Buildings of this nature should be specifically
designed. '

- 6.4.1 Panel Thickness

Extemal wall panels shall be a minimum of 32mm thick TRIBOARD, with battens fixed to the
outer face as per Table 6.3

Internal wall panels shall be a minimum of 32mm thick TRIBOARD. Where an infemal wall
spans more than 3m between lateral supports such as walls at right angles to it, 35 or 38mm
panels shall be used.

6.6 Lintels
6.6.1 Lintels

T

Table 6.7 shows the lintel depth (mm) required for use with the TRIBOARD Panel Construction
System. The truss span shall be taken as the roof dimension °S° in accordance with NZS
3604, Figure 36B.

6.6.2 Lintel supports

Lintels may be buit jointed to the adjacent wall panels using the appropriate detail. Panels

supporting lintels shall be a length no less than 600mm or 200mm when fixed to another panel
at right angles.

7 POSTS REFER TO NZS 3603

8.0 EXTERIOR WALL COVERINGS

8.1 cna(iding |

Any conventional cladding may be used.

8.2 Instaltation of external joinery

Install winrdows and doors to provide a Watertight seal between the cladding and the perimeter

of the frame in accordance with the manufacturer’s instructions. Details which allow water to
run down behind the extemal cladding are not recommended.

12
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9 WALL LININGS
9.3 Stopping of joints between panels

Joints between panels must be firmly fixed using one of the joint details shown in this manual.
Joints may be stopped using normal GIB stopping materials as follows:

Both “shest edges bevelied 3mm deep x 50 - 75 wide, bevels not painted. Use bedding
compound to fix paper tape (NOT glass tape) Finish with finishing compound. Stop ceiling
panels similarly. o

' 10-11 REFERTO NZS 3604

12 CEILINGS

12.1 Board ceiling - 18 or 20mm board

' *
The maximum distance between parallel bracing lines shall be no more then 8m centre to
centre,

Each perimeter bracing fine shall contain no less than 70BU's, provided walls longer than 7m
measured between building comers, shall contain no less than 10BU's per meter of wall length.

12.2 Strapped gib celling

A'conventionai gib ceiling as per Section 12 of NZS 3604 may be used. In this case the
distances between bracing lines must be those from NZS 3604.

APPENDIX M
M1 Ventila-tion

As TRIBOARD panel houses have very low air leakage it is necessary to provide a small
amount of permanent ventilation to prevent mould growth and the possibility of an
accumulation of moisture. Ventilation requirements for housing are specified in NZBC G4.
Triboard is made using a low formaldehyde resin and meets the European E2 standard for
formaldehyde confent. When the panels are painted the emission from the surfaces is further
reduced. in practice the ventilation required fo prevent dampness and mould growth in houses
is ample to prevent any accumutation of formaldehyde. '

13






M2 Insulation

. A number of combinations of wall and ceiling materials may be uéed to achieve the insulation

level required. Chart M shows the values required by NZS 4218P.
The values required for a Medallion home are easily achieved.

~ APPENDIX N - SERVICES

N1 Electrical

Grooves and ducts to accommodate electrical wiring are nommally cut at the factory. |If
necessary they may be cut on site using a router and drill. Refer to Detail Sheet 14 for typical
details. check with your local panel supplier as to his standard practice.

N2 Plumbing

Plumbing

Plumbing and drainage are normally accommodated Tn each fitting and connected from the
fioor.

PANEL SUPPLIERS

Panel Manufacture

In order to maintain a satisfactory standard of quality and to meet the Triboard remanufacturers
warranty requirements only panels manufactured by @n accredited remanufacturer may be
used as building components.

The tolerances for panel manufacture and erection are included in Section 2 of_this manual,

Accredited Remanufacturers

Companies which have been accredited by ACTRANZ as panel remanufacturers and from
whom panels may be purchased directly are listed in the back of this manual.

14






Wall insulation R values

Insulation of Walls and Ceilings
wall and Ceiling R-Value Combinations from N}S' 4218p
-6 "'?rﬁi‘ir‘&““wfl‘zf“" ggj}i;‘%& ............ Type A - Cavity construction
15 Camyst w : ngff:f Type B - Solid
. 14 ,. ........
1.3 _ .......... : ‘
12 berrorrens .......... .......... - ......... ........ '
11 .......... .......... .......... ..... ...........
10 pattmed Tﬂbo;zrd wall : .1?(?.0"]‘.{3.0

60mm solid timber

s

0.5: > — : — 3 : g : : :
1.2 1.4 16 1.8 2.0 2.2 2.4 2.6 28 3.0 3.2

- Roof insulation R valuss -é-

R Values for various wall cross sections

Building paper not shown - refer to cladding mfrs spacification

Notes for doubled baﬂen wall R = 1.58

86 mm Trlboard

Batten —_— =
Reflactive foll 188 » . other walls -
(non” perforated) . 2 - Battens must be dry to prevent trapp_ed moisture
Batten 3 - Seal both cavities at top and mid height with
Clé& ding horizontal battens similar to that shown at the
bottom on Sheet 4 Staple the foil edges to the
PRI : horizontal battens to seal the air space
86 mm Triboard =—= s g < 36 -mm-Triboard —————————"""
Figlags = =T Refi foil e
Batten l{ m ) E SU”? 1.5 ~ Airgap : 1.0
Cladding ; Batten
: ‘ Cladding
45mm Triboard ~—~—_ ——_ T <
36 mm Triboard —————————"" cercigmm T A ‘~T-_‘_—_-T::_\-‘:—- 1.0
Refl toil —_— " polystyrene e e
Air gap ' 112 - Cladding
Batten .
Building paper ’ \R vaiues 96 revision
Brick

5.

-
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INSULATION CALCULATIONS FOR TRIBOARD WALL PANEL AND ROOF COMBINATIONS

S These are shown in graphical form on the precedmg page

reer : S ,‘ s ”':-_,
v

. With greater msulatlon in the walls there can be Iess in the roof

=14z

st ST e e . . it

Combmanon L B ) Wi w2 W3 W4 W5
Bea%_’“‘“”_rhrﬁ" N 6 4 86 45 60
Irisulailon figlass clystyren refl foil olystyren none
C!addmg H/planks Hiplanks H/planks ply  board
Wall : Rvalue
ftem . .
Inside surface Rsi 0.03 008 008 008 009 009
Tribcard 36 mm 0.33 0.33 0.33
4 - 45 0.41 0.41 . 041
- 50 0.46
Refla.irgap .20 0.55
= - 40 0.57 . 057
Polystyrene 18 050 0.50
- S 1/ 1.02 1.02
- 40 . 110 '
50 mm t/glass batts . .. 100 1.00
‘50 mm Rocwool 1.60 '
12mmply ' 0.11 :
__Hardiplanks : 0.03 . 003 003 003 003 003
""Outside'surface Rso " 0.03 © 03 - DO3 003 003 003
Total wall Rvalue 148 158 105 106 015
' Combination A ' R RR R3 R4
"“Hooﬂng . mm . ~ iron fron iron  iron
- Insulation ' figlass ffglass olystyren rocwoo!
:Ceiling .-~ . - R board board board board
Root ~= = = - - Rvalue
= Inside surface Rsi 0.09 008 009 009 009
* e 75 mm ffglass batts - 180 . . o :
100 mm tiglass batts 2.40 : 2.40
7150 mm figlass batts 3.40 3.40
" 775 mm Rocwool 1.80 -
100 mm Rocwool . 270 :
~125 mm Rocwool 3.00 3.00
»1 00 mm polystyrene © 275 - 275
18 mm board ceiling 017 017 017 017 017
20 mm board ceiling 0.18
.Ou15|de surface Rsa . 003 003 003 003 003
: Total roovaaIue ' ‘369 269 304 329
16

.2+ Refer to N Z $4218 P and Acceptable solution E3/AS1 for the reqmred insulation values

WE
36

refl foil x 2
Hiplanks

0.08
0.33

0.03
0.03

1.58





| Fire Rating (minutes)

- Load Bearing Walls

o . (TFW 30/2)

N
' Stablily 30

60 (TFW 60/1)

Elabliity 80

mi’]ill"

.80 (TFW 60/1)
Post load as deslgnw,_-

|

Non Load Bearing

' glablity 30

l“

(10 kKN/m) - ‘ R o Uintegrity 80 - Integrity = 02 I ‘Width bolwoon o
: » ) " Insulation 30 insutation = 82 - walla vaﬂoa -
_ ‘ ';; $0/30/30 80/90/60- " ’
Height N ' 28 x 150 ' . -
3m max. ::aza:so epacer Post
or as designed el
with post o
'BRANZ Raf No: , 927232 02/234 © 92/204 * !
SANZ/MP9 Ref No: 02.4.6.8 v2/43 02.4.8.8 02/14
' Flre Rating (minutes) 30 (TFW 30/1) 60 (TFW 90/1)

90
) L.
. 28 38 -
: |e 80/90/00
. . ) Stabllity = 82

~ Ph/Fax 09 521 0864 .

— "

" Board density 700kg/m3

Date” 14/1/94

Intagrity 30 integrity - ©2
. Wa"s tnsulation 30 . fnsulation g2
. gt . 3079000 ~———38 x 160 | 98 'k 150,
Height _ At~ 30 % 1s0 " spacer. i apucer.
3m max.. at joints.
For construction datallé ,she Sheoet 33 ‘
a As for 90 mins
BRANZ Rel No: 92/233 92/289
SANZ/MPS Ref No: 03.25.2" 92/t 3.28.2 92/2
o ACTRANZ o nr ome s sosems | Triboard Firewall Selection  Prawn JG/RG  Revised RG File.No_93031
" 1% Aphal Bt Orakel AUCKLAND o Chacked RY Date 26/8 Sheet 32 .
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B RANZ

THE RESGURCE CENTRE FOR BUILDING EXCELLENCE

9 December 1993

This opinion may only be reproduced in full unless the prior permission of the Chief Executive of
BRANZ is obtained.

SUMMARY
Triboard

Factory primed Triboard used for interior walls (load-bearing and non-load bearing) of houses will
be durable for SO years and meet the NZBC B2 requirements with the following provisos:

Exposure to the weather i3 limited to 2 weeks or less.

All site cut edges are sealed.

A cladding system is installed which prevents water from contacting the Triboard panels.

Water is prevented from contacting the bottom edges of the panels in wet rooms.

The walls in wet rooms must be finished with coating with low water vapour permeability {e.g.
oil/alkyd enamel, polyurethane, epoxy) and the room must have an adequate level of ventilation
as described in NZBC E3/AS1.

6. The edges of cut-outs for windows should be sealed with epoxy (or similar) paint and flashing
details must be such that water entry through to the Triboard does not occur. :
7. Saunas must not be installed in Triboard houses.

Strandboard

Strandboard used as a flooring material in houses will meet the NZBC B2 requirements with the
following provisos:

o exposure to the weather is limited to 2 months or less

+ ground drainage must be in accordance with NZBC E2

s+ sub-floor spaces must be ventilated as required by NZS 3604:1990

» a 300 mm gap must be left between the flooring and the ground or, a damp proof membrane
installed

» no hot air vents (eg from driers), steam vents or overflow pipes are to be directed into the sub
floor area :

« foil floor insulation should be uséd in areas in localities where rainfalf is high

t

When used in wet rooms (such as laundries or bathrooms) Strandboard must be protected with a
finish which is both waterproof and has a low water vapour permeability. The Durability of
Strandboard in these situations is totally dependent on the finish being maintained. Strandboard
should not be used in saunas or steam rooms.

Moonshine Road, Judgeford, Privete Bag 50808, Porirua City, New Zealand ) i

Telephons +64 4 235 7600 Fax: +64 4 235 6070

Company
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1. BIA Reguirements
Triboard

1t is our opinion that the durability requirements under section B2 of the NZBC for Triboard used in
houses are:

o where Triboard is used as load-bearing walls as given in B2.3(a) - 50 years or the specified
intended life.

o where Triboard is used as load-bearing walls as given in B2.3(c) and B2/AS] - 15 years or the
specified intended life,

Strandboard
It is our opinion that the durability requirements under section B2 of the NZBC for Strandboard are:

e where Strandboard is used as the flooring under the framing in houses - 50 years or the specified
intended life as given in B2.3(a).

e where Strandboard is used as a flooring but laid subsequent to the erection of the house frame as
given in B2.3(¢) and B2/AS1 - 15 years of the specified intended life.

o where Strandboard is used as & diaphragm ceiling lining between the walls and trusses - 50 years
or the specified intended life as given in B2.3(a).

2. History of use
Urea formaldehyde (UF) resins date from 1870 but commercial use started from about 1930,

Urea formaldehyde resin has been used for construction purposes for more than 50 years. Over this
period it has been used for laminating timber (including beams and plywood), finger jointing timber
and manufacturing wood composites such particieboard (PB) and medium density fibreboard (MDF).
The performance of UF over this period has been proven to be satisfactory subject to certain
restrictions on the environmental conditions where it may be used. Particleboard manufacture using
UF resins started in the 1950s and was introduced to New Zealand toward the end of that decade. The
number of houses with particleboard floors installed is conservatively estimated at over 300,000.
During this time the number of failures reported to BRANZ has been relatively few. Many of these
have related to incorrect installation (e.g. inadequate sub-floor ventilation) and abuse in service.

3, Assessment of Triboard Durability
1.1 Generzl
Durability of the resin

UF bonded products perform poorly when exposed for long periods to wet conditions and when fully
exposed to the weather. The reasons for this is that urea-formaldehyde undergoes hydrolysis in the
presence of water, The rate of the hydrolysis reaction is dependent on the temperature and is
generally held to take place quite rapidly when the temperature exceeds 40 °C. At normal ambient
temperatures in New Zealand the hydrolysis rate is very slow. Short-term exposure to cold water {eg.
20 °C) does not cause appreciabie breakdown of the resin, but immersion in warm or hot water
rapidly causes breakdown (Dinwoodie 1983). Historically mast problems with UF bonded PB
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flooring recorded at BRANZ have been in bathrooms and laundries in tenanted houses. MUF bonded
particleboards have a higher resistance to water than UF and when formulated correctly can be
classified as boil resistant to BS 1204. These adhesives are generally accepted as suitable for use in
protected exterior applications and high hazard interior situations (BRE Digest 340).

The resin in current production of Triboard and Strandboard results in lower formaldehyde emissions

compared to resins used in older flooring particle boards. These resins use & lower formaldehyde to
urea ratio. Several studies have been carried out to assess whether these resins perform as well as
earlier higher formaldehyde meterials. Roffael (1993) discusses the properties of low emission
(E1/E2) )UF resins and their influence on particleboard properties. He concluded that resin
performance was dependent on & number of factors including formaldehyde ratios. A well formulated
low emission resin was shown to be stable under cyclic humidity testing for 30 weeks between 30%
RH and 85% RH at 20 °C.

Data has been provided by Dynochem NZ who manufacture the resin used in Triboard. They have
compared the hydrolytic stability of samples of perticieboard using the newer E1/E2 resins to
samples of older particleboard using older E2/E3 tesins. The change in properties during the testing
to date suggest that the newer resins are performing similarly to the older ones.

Use in Particleboards and fibreboards

Particleboards bonded with most adhesives show some sensitivity to moisture with a decrease in
strength properties at high moisture contents. This is due to the properties of the timber particles, the
adhesive, and the manufacturing process.

Timber shows a reduction in stiffness as its moisture content increases (Penshin and de Zesuw, 1570).
The same phenomenon occurs to wood particles in particleboards, This process is reversible and
when the moisture content drops the strength is regained.

Particleboard adhesives including UF, are considered stable at normal temperatures when exposed
intermittently to moisture. The individual wood particles in perticleboard swell when they absorb
moisture (as does timber), This swelling is believed to cause stress on adhesive bonds betwesn wood
fibres which can result in bond breakage in rigid adhesives such as urea formaldehyde (Dinwoodie
1977).

Particleboards are subject to heat and pressure during manufacture which results in a degree of
compression set in the manufactured sheet. When the PB absorbs moisture it expands (primarily in
the thickness direction) releasing some of the compression induced during manufacture, This
phenomenon called springback is irreversible. A proportion of this strength loss is recovered when
the PB dries out.

With UF particleboards therefore, & loss in strength is observed when the material is subject t0
increased moisture contents from wetting or when exposed to high relative humidities for extended
periods (eg 95% RH for several months). Watkinson and van Gosliga have demonstrated this for a
range of NZ wood based composites (1990). Similar behaviour is observed with MUF bonded
particleboards.

Use in Triboard

Triboard manufacture has many similarities to the manufacture of particteboard and medium density
fibreboard (MDF). One major difference is the use of steam injection to cure the mat rather than





18,8839 16:55 B4 9 3899326 .
@ AUG 93 15:58 JUKEN NISSHO 64 9 3898326 P.7

heated plattens as in conventional FB or MDF manufacture. This difference is not expected to result
in any adverse effects on durability.

Durability of the timber particles

The wood particles included in Triboard are not treated so are potentially subject to biological attack.
In NZ the only common causes of timber deterioration are rots and boring insects. Rots only occur
when-high timber moisture contents (in excess 20% by weight) are sustained for extended periods.
For Strandboard or Triboard to reach this moisture content the building would have reached non-
compliance with NZBC E2 and E3 or the sub floor ventilation requirements of NZ8 3604:1990. 1t is
unlikely that such an excessive moisture content could be sustained without some degradation of the
physical properties of the Strandboard or Triboard. A 50 year durability cannot be reached under
these circumstances.

The common house borer {anobium punctatum) will under some circumstances attack untreated
radiata. BRANZ is aware of less than 10 cases where this has been reported for particleboard in thirty
years. At an estimated probability of severe attack of 0.003% (based on 300,000 houses and 10 cases)
this a level of risk which must be considered favonrably alongside many commonly used and
accepted building products, The chances of borer attack are reduced by the use of a sealer coat on the
Triboard. :

The native long horn borer is not reported as attacking UF bonded products.

3.2 Laboratory testing

Cyclic humidity testing

Triboard (both UF and MUF) and Strandboard samples bonded were subjected to cyclic bumidity
testing at 20£2 °C as outlined in Tabile 1. After each cycle, samples were tested for modulus of

elasticity (MOE) and modulus of rupture (MOR).

Table 1. Cyclic humidity cycling regime

Testing. . -~ - |.... .. .Conditioning *
6 of each boerd type tested 65% RH
6 of each board type tested 65% -95% RH
6 of each board type tested 65% -95%-65% RH
6 of each board type tested 65% -95%-65%-95% RH
6 of each board type tested 65% -95%-65%-95%-65% RH

* samples were conditioned at each RH until the samples reached constant weight (< 0.1% weight
change over 24 hours)

This testing was carried out to evaluate whether high humidities and humidity cycling would cause &
joss in strength properties of the Triboard and Strandboard, and if so, how much. It should be noted
that the regime used is much more severe than would be expected in a well built and maintained
house. In practice the Triboard is factory primed to provide protection during construction. The
coating will also slow the uptake and release of moisture by the panels.

The results of the testing are summarised below in Table 2. These show that Triboard (both UF and
MUF bonded) and Strandboard perform very well under humidity cycling. A drop of approximately
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RH but when reconditioned back to 65% RH, almost all
sults are better than one would expect for particleboard
R at 95% RH (Watkinson and van Gosliga, 1990).
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. UF Triboard MOR (MPa) 20.0 15.0 19.1 16.4 19.7
UF;I‘riboard MOE (MPa) 3133 2216 3056 2492 3078
MUF Triboard MOR (MPa) 254 17.1 24.6 20.0 254
MUF Triboard MOE (MPs) 3234 2250 3069 2614 3225
Strandboard MOR {MPa) 29.1 21.1 28.8 21.9 27.8
Strandboard MOE (MPa) 3720 2662 3670 2800 3550

A very conservative estimate of 85%
performance of particieboard flooring over 30 years is considered.

3.3 Effect of sealing Triboard

Triboard used in houses is sealed in the facto
weather during construction and
humidity. Samples of sealed UF
RH for § weeks and the weight monitor
The results are shown in Figure 1. The acrylic sealer slowed the u

strength retention seems reasonable over 50 years when the

a barrier to rapid moisture content changes
and MUF bonded Triboard were subjected to conditioning at 95%
ed weekly. Uncoated samples were aiso included as controls.
ptake of water vapour, particularly

over the first three to four weeks compared to the uncoated samples.

3.4 Old samples of Triboard

Samples of old stock Tribo
uncontrolled factory environment for 3 years were conditio
MOR (BRANZ Test Report MTR 985). The re
figures are not available for comparison, it can

high tevel of strength.

ard (both UF and MUF bonded) which had b
ned to 95£5%
sults are shown in Table

Table 3. Results of testing MOR and MOE for UF and MUF Triboard

ry. The ssaler provides temporary protection against the
induced by changes in

een sitting in & sheltered but
RH and tested for MOE and
3. Although initial strength
be seen that the Triboard samples have maintained a

“Sampie. T MOE (MPa) . | Sta.Dev- . - ~MOR (MPa):
UF Triboard 342 2.8 3517
MUF Triboard 281 09 2421

1.5 Exposure to the weather of Strandboard.
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Water must be prevented from reaching the edges of the Triboard. The provisions of NZBC E3 must
be complied with to ensure that the Triboard remains dry (note BRANZ recomnmends that to prevent
water from being absorbed through the bottom edges of the walls in wet rooms; a water proof finish
should be applied to the floor and coved up the edges of the Triboard and a drain should also be
installed so that water can be rapidly removed from the surface). The edges of the Triboard in
window openings are likely to be a sensitive area and should be sealed (e.g. with a quality high-build
product such as an epoxy paint) prior to installation of the windows. This opinion does not cover the
use of Triboard for saunas and steam rooms in houses. If these are 10 be instailed, Juken Nissho must
be consulted for design recommendations.

Strandboard

Strandboard is intended for use as a flooring material and a ceiling lining. When used as a flooring
material exposure to the weather should be limited to 2 months and pending of water on the surface
avoided. The moisture content of the Strandboard must be maintained at 18% or less in service. To
ensure that this is achieved, the sub-floor must be ventilated as per the requirements of NZS
3604:1990 and ground drainage must be in accordance with NZBC E2 to ensure that water does not
pond in the sub-floor region. A minimum clearance of 300 mm must also be allowed or & damp proof
membrane used to cover the ground surface. The use of foil floor insulation in areas of high rainfall
will assist in keeping the flooring warmer and drier.

The durability of Strandboard is dependent on it being maintained in a dry state. The provisions of
NZBC E3 must be complied with to ensure that it is protected from wetting in bathrooms, laundries
etc. Hot air vents (eg from driers), steam vents or overflow pipes must not be directed into the sub-
floor arca. Strandboard should not be used in saunas or steam rooms.

When Strandboard is used as a ceiling lining over walls and under roof trusses, the moisture content
must be maintained below 18%. To protect the Strandboard from high temperatures which can arise
in roof spaces, insulation must be installed over the Strandboard in the roof space. Flues from heating
devices (e.g. solid fuel stoves etc.) must be either insulated or separated such that the Strandboard
does not exceed 60°C.
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9 November 1999
50 THE OCTAGON. P.O. BOX 5045, DUNEDIN 9031, NEW ZEALAND. TELEPHONE: (03) 477-4000. FACSIMILE: (03) 474-3594

KINETIC HOLDINGS LIMITED
20 GARDEN PL
DUNEDIN 9001

Dear Sir/Madam

Regarding your building consent application to ERECT STUDENT
ACCOMMODATION/8 UNITS BC ONLY
at 820 CUMBERLAND STREET, DUNEDIN 9001.

Under Section 34(2) Building Act 1991, there will be delay
in processing your documents because :

we require the following information so your
application can be processed for the plumbing
and drainage .. dia of downpipes, size and
position of the stormwater sumps for the sealed
areas,dia and gradient of foul and storm drains
and plan to sewers,p/d design/code to be used A

e i ‘,p,,J a : : %C:QXT
Further information may be obtained by contacting Building
Control, Consents Issuing Section, Telephone 474-3483 at
your earliest convenience.

A el wrahis. Sandne
e o) lw\wﬂr

Yours Faithfully

MICHAEL LARSON
HANDLING OFFICER

4 2 ‘5‘00,(,1‘(? Ao

e





STELLA PACIFIC LIMITED

New Zealand Engineered Building System
Phone: 03 377-8838 Fax: 03 377-8204
P O Box 7635 — 48 Battersea Street, Sydenham, Christchurch
e-mail: stcﬂ.ﬂpaciﬁc@xtn.r:o.nz

25 November 1999

Dunedin City Council
P O Box 5045
Dunedin

Attention: Neil McLeod

In response to your letter dated 18 November 1999;

Downpipe diameters 80mm

Drainage and Stormwater are shown on new Site Plan.
Plumbing and Drainage Code AS3500

Schematic: All 1™ Floor wast to 100mm pipe to sewer
Plywood Specification: Replaced with C.G.1., see new Plan
Foundation Design: See new Plan

Equus Plaster now replaced with Marley WeatherBoard.
Barrier details for deck are shown on Plan

FRR Details are as per Manual 90 90 90. Included is a copy of new detail to be used. Detail.
gives a better Sound Rating and will improve Fire Rating.

If any further information is required, please do not hesitate to contact the writer.

Yours faithfully

AGR 77 S04
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-k -

499594/2 Mor g ap
Thomson Nomin&és
at 1l.44 pm,

53),35/2 Transfer to Robin Rodrick Day
¥arjtane Male Nurse and Faye Lynne Da}
wife - 12.5,1980 at 942 am

537461 GMortgaﬁgﬂ
Tt

L T 9 Qﬁ\tﬁ/‘

60218? Transfer to Robin Rodrick Day above- .

named - 26.9,1983 at 11.39

A,L.R.

T

690856/2 Transfer to Ronald Charles Julius
.of Dunedin Bank Officer - 16.11.1987 at 1.54

. o, gan
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o ¥y
i t, James &' .
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Limit 9,47 am

A.L.R.

959878, 2 Transfer to Raymond John Harpur and
Karen Margaret Harpur

9598738.3 Mortgage to The National Bank of

New Zealand lelted
all 23.12.1998 at 11.17
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Fernbridge Investments Limited to Kirsten
Margaret Holst of Palmerston North

14.3.1996 at 9.40am

c.r. 271218 7 : - R

" p—

. : | _ y
704 28 Transmission to Josephine Pdtrlcx.l ht - q% . ',
ménd .

of ~ erladlne, Widow, Wynne Archdall Ray

of Timaru, Solicitor and Peter John Woodnorth
of Timaru, Chartered Accountant as executors

- 15.6.1988 at 9.3§am

713184 Transfer to Richard John Hatherly
of Dunelin Businessman - 5.10.1988 at 11.14

an

ert Solicitors

BED
877715/% MbIRHage) to Ca
1Q43.1995 at

Nominee Com%angg it3%%d

9.45am

" B -
B89320 Variation of Mortgage
877715/4 - 18.8.1995 at 9.40 am . -
A94154/3 Transfer of a 1/13 share to T (:::iiggz:j

bDavid John Galloway of Dunedin
Lichenologist and Patricia Katherine
Payne of Dunedin Singer - 26.10.1995 at

9.54am
d W-w\m\r‘lﬂ'

A.L.R.
903590/3 Transfer of a 3/13th share
Richard John Hatherly to Fernbridge
Investments Limited - 14.3.1996 at 9.40am

903590/4 Transfer of their 3/13th share

doctor, Alistair Evans Broad and Hilary
Jane Calvert both of bunedin soliciters -
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Building Consent Application
820 Cumberland Street

Please provide the following:-

R
L%

Down pipe diameters.

Size and position of stormwater sumps for the sealed areas.

Diameter and gradient of foul and storm drains, and plan to sewers.
Plumbing and drainage design / code to be used.

Drainage plan to show fittings.

A schematic sanitary drainage plan for internal layout.

Plywood specification for roofing substrate

Specific design for the foundation, as it does not comply with NZS 3604.
Provide a summary of the design as per the Triboard manual clause 1.3
A second set of both the Triboard manual and the specification.

Equuis exterior wall cladding details

Barrier details for the decks

FRR details for all fire rated walls.

HANEIL\Property Letters\Cumberland street 820.doc
Page 1 of |
Printed 18/11/99





PIM Management System Page 1 of 2
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PROJECT INFORMATION MEMORANDUM NUMBER1223§70

CLEAR SITE - ERECT 8 RESIDENTIAL UNITS - PIM ONLY

820 CUMBERLAND ST, DUNEDIN 95001

| Departmental Information for this project is as follows|
|

Date last updated Tue 28 Sep 1999 16:13:55 by JOHN DEWAR

Building Admin

WARNING. The Dunedin City Council's private drainage records (plans) prior to
1 January 1993 may be incomplete or not clearly recorded. Owners therefore
are advised to carry out work with due care to avoid damage to any private
drain not detailed because of the lack of information filed in the Council's
records.

Medium wind zone.

WARNING. Please note that public sewer reticulation sheets are scaled in
either Imperial feet or Metric metres. Please check with the Area Drainage
Inspector if in doubt.

To comply with the New Zealand Building Code.

JD1

cumberland st & castle st house plans attached

castle st retic sheets attached

Date last updated Thu 07 Oct 1999 10:49:21 by JOHN DEWAR

City Consultants

No record found of land instability.
MG1
Date last updated Wed 29 Sep 1999 15:41:25 by MARCH GRAHAM

Contract & Asset Management

ANY damage to Council's Street Frontage will be reinstated at the Applicant's

cost

A vehicle entrance will be required. Council's requirements for this work and
a list of the Contractors registered to carry it out will be forwarded.

JME

I have visited the site at 820 Cumberland Street,and checked the footways kerb
& channel carriageway also the frontage Castle Street frontage.All are in good
condition.

A light commercial wvehicle crossing is required to be constructed Cumberland
Street frontage. The crossing to be constructed by council approved
contractor.

Jim Mears.

Date last updated Fri 01 Oct 1999 10:46:13 by JIM MEARS

Planning

Zoning: Residential 3 in the proposed district plan incorparing decisions to
submissions 1999 and Residential C in the Dunedin section of the transitional
district plan. The proposed activity does not comply with the district plan
rules in terms of building envelope line restriction and car parking
requirements. A resource consent is therefore required and has been applied

http://www.dcc.govt.nz/cgi-bin/pim/pim?pimenqr+992670 9/11/1999
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for.

Date last updated Mon 04 Oct 1999 15:13:23 by UELI SASAGI

Water

An application form, price schedule and trench specification for an Urban
Water Supply is attached. The property may already have water laid om.
However applicants should check that the supply is adequate for intended use.
NB - Every separate residential unit on a single property allotment shall have
a separate water supply pipe incorporating a standard Dunedin City Council
Water Department manifold box in a readily accessible location at the roadside
boundary of the property.

A copy of fire hydrant's flow test data is attached.

Each unit must have a separate water supply pipe incorporating a standard
Dunedin City Council Water Department stopcock installation in a readily
accessible location. Each unit must also be within 135 metres of a fire
hydrant.

All watermains, service pipes and associated fittings are to be located on
site and if necessary protected by the applicant prior to starting
construction.No building shall be constructed within 2 (two) metres of the
centreline of a public watermain.

4 (four) metre wide easements for the conveyance of water are required to
protect watermains in new land subdivisions.

Property owners are regquested to check the relevant deposited plans,
certificates of title and memoranda of transfer at the Lands and Deeds office
for information relating to these easments so that they can be accurately
drawn on site plans for building consent applications.

If water is required, a supply shall be given in accordance with Council's
Terms and Conditions. A copy of these can be made available to the applicant
if required.

A copy of the water reticulation plans for the area is attached.

A water service (if any exists) can be permanently plugged out at no charge.
Please complete and return the attached form to the Water Department.

Note: If a water service is required at a future date, then a new service
will need to be applied for and the applicable connection fee paid.

PC1

Date last updated Wed 29 Sep 1999 13:19:11 by PETER CASWELL

Date last printed Thu 07 Oct 1999 11:31:19 by CAROLE BEZETT

http://www.dcc.goﬂ.nz/ cgi-bin/pim/pim?pimengr+992670 9/11/1999
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From:

To: Dave Charters
Subject: RE: Castle Street.
Date: Thursday, 17 March 2016 03:47:00 p.m.
Attachments: image002.png
image013.png
image017.png
Hi Dave

| have reason to believe that you will be contacted by- wanting a copy of your report.
Know that | do not need to say this but please do not allow anyone access to it.

Also can we have a talk about clause 10.1.7. My boss would like a bit of clarification added.

Perhaps we can talk tomorrow on 474 389077

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

[ 2]
= GG

b% Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail

From: Dave Charters [mailto:dave@dclconsulting.co.nz]

Sent: Tuesday, 15 March 2016 12:53 p.m.
To: i

Subject: RE: Castle Street.

Thanks-

After me experience with the ODT, which embarrassed me, you can rest very much assured
that | shall be very careful what | say to whom!

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

Sent: Tuesday, 15 March 2016 11:12 a.m.
To: Dave Charters <dave@dclconsulting.co.nz>
Subject: RE: Castle Street.

Hi Dave
Yes, happy with your report and it has gone upstairs.

If you want to provide advice for the property owners | see no conflict with the DCC as long as
they do not try to use you to apportion blame / cost to the DCC.

You trip to Aussi is noted

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

| CHCHC

b% Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail

From: Dave Charters [mailto:dave@dclconsulting.co.nz]
Sent: Tuesday, 15 March 2016 6:21 a.m.

To:
Subject: RE: Castle Street.

Good morning-

I’'m asked by- if 1 can help their Consulting Engineer with his proposals to strengthen the
balconies. | can do this without divulging the contents of my report. But inevitably some of my
guidance will indicate what my concerns are. Are you happy for me to do that.

Speaking of my report. All very quiet — you happy with the
content/layout/conclusions/recommendations.


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

Just a heads up. I’'m on a course in Aus next week so any change requests would be best dealt
with this week. | will be in cell/email contact though.

Dave Charters

email logo

EXPERIENCE : VALUE : SERVICE : PROFESSIONALISM : INTEGRITY
Contact Details: DDI 03 482 1138 : Cell 021 313135

rror: I

Sent: Monday, 14 March 2016 9:13 a.m.
To: dave <dave@dclconsulting.co.nz>
Subject: RE: Castle Street.

Yes, the trick in life is not to repeat your mistakes. A lesson | struggle to learn!!

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

D% Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail

From: dave [mailto:dave@dclconsulting.co.nz]
Sent: Monday, 14 March 2016 9:11 a.m.

To:
Subject: RE: Castle Street.

A mistake made once only!

Dave.

Sent from my Samsung device


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

-------- Origina m @ --------
From:
Date: 14/03/2016 09:02 (GMT+12:00)

To: Dave Charters <dave@dclconsulting.co.nz>
Subject: RE: Castle Street.

Thanks Dave. Thisisexactly why we would have preferred that you did not give the
interview

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
www.dunedin.govt.nz/bs-newsl etter

b% Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail

From: Dave Charters [mailto:dave@dclconsulting.co.nz]
Sent: Monday, 14 March 2016 7:57 a.m.

To:
Cc:
Subject: Castle Street.

Good morning ||}

The articlein the ODT on Saturday was so far from my carefully chosen words to them
and | regret that. | have told the reporter in question that | shall be very reluctant to
communicate with them in the future. | did answer a question regarding whether the
bal cony was overloaded in the affirmative. | felt safe doing this because it underpinned
Simon Pickfords earlier statement and, as | was further along the track of crystallising my
findings, this seemed acceptable. | did tell him that he would have to wait for my report,
if, indeed, it was made public. He did include this which rather contradicted his headline. |
had no intent for you to find out the conclusion of my report viathe press. Y ou now have
my report and will seethat it is not asingle factor that caused the collapse.

Since emailing you the report | have been advised that a number of the individuals on the
bal cony had gained access from the roof. Apparently, the flat occupants had felt it
necessary to secure the door to protect their belongings. This doesn’t change the findings
of my report but does add a dimension of student stupidity. Thisinformation isto a degree
anecdotal so caution isrequired.

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
mailto:[mailto:dave@dclconsulting.co.nz]

email logo

EXPERIENCE : VALUE : SERVICE : PROFESSIONALISM : INTEGRITY
Contact Details: DDI 03 482 1138 : Cell 021 313135

If this message is not intended for you please delete it and notify us immediately; you are warned that any further use,
dissemination, distribution or reproduction of this material by you is prohibited.

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

Sent: Tuesday, 8 March 2016 02:00 p.m.

To: Kristy Rusher; Simon Pickford; Graham McKerracher
e Y

Subject: Documentl

Attachments: Documentl.docx

Hi all

Here is the draft letter to the property owners for consideration.

Cheers

Adrian &-



From: Dave Gittings <Dave.Gittings@mbie.govt.nz>

Sent: Tuesday, 8 March 2016 06:06 p.m.
To: I

Subject: Deck

Hi

Thanks for all your assistance today, it was greatly appreciated.
| believe the next steps are for us to get a preliminary report out before the end of March and | would like to be able
to share that with you as soon as possible.

Thank you again, Dave

Sent from my iPad
www.govt.nz - your guide to finding and using New Zealand government services

Any opinions expressed in this message are not necessarily those of the Ministry of Business, Innovation and
Employment. This message and any files transmitted with it are confidential and solely for the use of the intended
recipient. If you are not the intended recipient or the person responsible for delivery to the intended recipient, be
advised that you have received this message in error and that any use is strictly prohibited. Please contact the
sender and delete the message and any attachment from your computer.



From: Dave Gittings

To: -]
Subject: Deck
Date: Tuesday, 8 March 2016 06:05:46 p.m.

Hi [l

Thanks for all your assistance today, it was greatly appreciated.

| believe the next steps are for us to get a preliminary report out before the end of March and | would like to be
able to share that with you as soon as possible.

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
Employment. This message and any files transmitted with it are confidential and solely for the use

of the intended recipient. If you are not the intended recipient or the person responsible for delivery to the
intended recipient, be advised that you have received this message in error and that any useis

strictly prohibited. Please contact the sender and del ete the message and any attachment from your computer.


mailto:Dave.Gittings@mbie.govt.nz

From: Building Services Enquiries

Sent: Thursday, 10 March 2016 10:40 a.m.

To: I

Cc: Adrian BIair;_

Subject: Balcony Collapse DCC Correspondence : Unit 9, 598 Castle Street, Dunedin
Attachments: SC2800089116031009081.pdf

Dear-

Please find attached a copy of the Dunedin City Council’s letter outlining the findings and recommendations
regarding the recent balcony collapse at 598 Castle Street. The original letter will be posted to you today.

For any queries regarding the attached, please do not hesitate to contact Neil McLeod on 03 474 3890 or
nmcleod@dcc.govt.nz.

Kind regards

BCA Administrator
Customer & Regulatory Services
Dunedin City Council

50 The Octagon, Dunedin; P O Box 5045, Moray Place, Dunedin 9058, New Zealand
Telephone: 03 477 4000; Fax: 03 474 3523.

cmoi:

Register here to receive electronic updates from the Building Services team.

5% Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail



From: Building Services Enquiries

Sent: Thursday, 10 March 2016 10:39 a.m.

To: T

Cc: Adrian Blair;_

Subject: Balcony Collapse DCC Correspondence : Units 3, 4, 5, 6, 7 & 8, 598 Castle Street,
Dunedin

Attachments: SC2800089116031009082.pdf

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

el I

Register here to receive electronic updates from the Building Services team.

b% Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail
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D U N E DI N c I TY 50 The Octagon, PO Box 5045, Moray Place
Dunedin 9058, New Zealand
Telephone: 03 477 4000, Fax: 03 4743488
Kaunihera-a-rohe o Otepoti Email: dcc@dce.govt.nz
T AL T e A
10 March 2016 :

Dunedin 9010

Re: Units 3, 4, 5, 6, 7 & 8, 598 Castle Street, Dunedin

Following the recent balcony collapse the Dunedin City Council has carried out a review of the 1999
building consent for the building at 598 Castle Street. We have also evaluated the balcony that
detached from this building. The Council is also assisting the Ministry of Business Innovation and
Employment to conduct their investigation.

The Council's preliminary findings are that the building was completed in accordance with the
building consent and is compliant with the New Zealand Building Code in respect of the structure
elements of the balcony floors.

In respect of the recent balcony collapse, it appears that this balcony may have been overloaded at
the time the collapse occurred. However our preliminary engineering advice indicates that the
balustrading (safety barrier) to the balconies requires improvement.

The balconies were constructed to a 2 kilopascal floor loading, and it is further suggested that you
seek advice about the number of people your balconies can safely support, and when this number is
established advise your occupants accordingly through the use of appropriate signage.

We strongly recommend that as a prudent building owner you seek professional engineering advice
to confirm whether the remaining balcanies (including balustrades) are structurally sound and that
advice about restricting the use of the balcony to safe loads is obtained.

The Council's engineer has recommended that these balconies are closed and that you prohibit their
use until improvements are carried out,

Can you please advise myself on 03 474 3890 or nmcleod@dcc.govt.nz when you have completed
the review of your balconies.

o

eil MclLeod
Building Services Manager



From: Building Services Enquiries

Sent: Thursday, 10 March 2016 10:35 a.m.

To: I

Cc: Adrian BIair_

Subject: DCC Balcony Collapse Correspondence : Units 1 & 2, 598 Castle Street, Dunedin
Attachments: SC2800089116031009080.pdf

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



D U N E D I N c I TY 50 The Octagon, PO Box 5045, Moray Place
Dunedin 9058, New Zealand
Teiephone: 03 4774000, Fax: 03 4743488
Kaunihera-a-rohe o Otepoti Email: dcc@dcc.govt.nz
BT ke LT
10 March 2016
Mosgiel 9024

Re: Units § & 2, 598 Castle Street, Dunedin

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
to confirm whether the remaining balconies (including balustrades) are structurally sound and that
advice about restricting the use of the balcony to safe loads is obtained.

The Council's engineer has recommended that these balconies are closed and that you prohibit their
use until improvements are carried out.

Can you please advise myself on 03 474 3890 or nrarlead@dcc.guvt.nz when you have completed
the review of your balconies.

Yours sincerely

oe

Neil McLeod
Building Services Manager



From: I

To:

Cc: Adrian Blair

Subject: 598 Castle Street

Date: Thursday, 10 March 2016 11:26:13 a.m.

Hi- | have just finished a conversation with Dave Charters and he is not very happy with the
report that was in the ODT today.
Adrian is aware of this and | told him that | would email you.

Can you please call him as soon as possible. |||z o' TGN

Kind Regards

Compliance Officer
Regulatory Services
Dunedin City Council

50 The Octagon, Dunedin; PO Box 5045, Moray Place, Dunedin 9058, New Zealand
Telephone: 03 474 3550; Fax 03 474 3523

Email;_;; www.dunedin.govt.nz

%Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail
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From: Dave Charters

To: .
Cc:

Subject: Castle Street.

Date: Friday, 11 March 2016 02:02:02 p.m.

Hi

I (0D7), had been in contact with me to meet and in the interests of

professional transparency | mentioned this to you this morning. Your stance was fully
respected but | decided to make the arranged brief meeting whilst being quite prepared to say
nothing if he chose to pursue a hostile attitude. Nothing could be further from the reality.
What we discussed was an Engineers perspective, effectively how these investigations are
approached. | felt able to do that and made it crystal clear at the outset and during the short
chat that my views did not represent those of Council. | think your organisation will be very
happy with the support | was able to quite honestly give referring to your approach as being
prompt and professional — as | have come to expect.

| am reviewing the key points later in the afternoon and will make sure that there is nothing
embarrassing in any way in the script. As it was neutral I’'m not even sure it will be published.

| revisited site and the balcony remains at the Police Station this morning with a Contractor
with whom | work closely to get his perspective and | believe | now have all the information to
prepare my report to you. | will probably progress this over the weekend. As | mentioned on
the phone | am quite prepared to offer you a draft for comment in the first instance. | will be
happy to adjust my wording in the light of such comments. | think the only contentious point
will be the baluster construction and capacity.

Kind regards,

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

Jre—
_ had been in contact with me to meet and in the interests of

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
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